
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

City of Dripping Springs  

Council Chambers, 511 Mercer St, Dripping Springs, TX  

Tuesday, August 25, 2020 at 6:30 PM  

VIDEOCONFERENCE MEETING 

This meeting will be held via videoconference and the public is encouraged and welcome to participate.  

Public comment may be given during the videoconference by joining the meeting using the information 

below. Public comment for this meeting may also be submitted to the City Secretary at 

acunningham@cityofdrippingsprings.com no later than 4:00 PM on the day the meeting will be held. 
 

The Planning & Zoning Commission respectfully requests that all microphones and webcams be disabled 

unless you are a member of the Commission. City staff, consultants and presenters, please enable your 

microphone and webcam when presenting to the Commission. 

Agenda 

MEETING SPECIFIC VIDEOCONFERENCE INFORMATION 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85842339524?pwd=aDhXa1J6Y2RVM2lTaG85Yk0zTFptZz09 

Meeting ID: 858 4233 9524 

Passcode: 222242 

Dial Toll Free: 
        877 853 5257 US Toll-free 

        888 475 4499 US Toll-free 

Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kemKIZDvAw 

Join by Skype for Business: https://us02web.zoom.us/skype/85842339524 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

Commission Members 

Mim James, Chair 

James Martin, Vice Chair 

Christian Bourguignon 

John McIntosh 

Roger Newman 

Evelyn Strong 

Tammie Williamson 

Staff, Consultants & Elected/Appointed Officials: 

Deputy City Administrator Ginger Faught 

1

mailto:acunningham@cityofdrippingsprings.com


City Attorney Laura Mueller 

City Secretary Andrea Cunningham 

Senior Planner Amanda Padilla 

City Engineer Chad Gilpin 

Planning Consultant Robyn Miga 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

PRESENTATION OF CITIZENS 

A member of the public who desires to address the Commission regarding any item on an agenda for an 

open meeting may do so at presentation of citizens before an item or at a public hearing for an item during 

the Commission’s consideration of that item. Citizens wishing to discuss matters not contained within the 

current agenda may do so, but only during the time allotted for presentation of citizens. Speakers are 

allowed two (2) minutes to speak during presentation of citizens or during each public hearing. Speakers 

may not cede or pool time. Members of the public requiring the assistance of a translator will be given 

twice the amount of time as a member of the public who does not require the assistance of a translator to 

address the Commission. It is the request of the Commission that members of the public wishing to speak 

on item(s) on the agenda with a noticed Public Hearing hold their comments until the item(s) are presented 

for consideration. Speakers are encouraged to sign in. Anyone may request a copy of the City’s policy on 

presentation of citizens from the city secretary. By law no action may be taken during Presentation of 

Citizens. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

The following items are anticipated to require little or no individualized discussion due to their nature 

being clerical, ministerial, mundane or routine. In an effort to enhance the efficiency of Planning & 

Zoning Commission meetings, it is intended that these items will be acted upon by the Planning & Zoning 

Commission with a single motion because no public hearing or determination is necessary. However, a 

Planning & Zoning Commission Member or citizen may request separate deliberation for a specific item, 

in which event those items will be removed from the consent agenda prior to the Planning & Zoning 

Commission voting on the consent agenda as a collective, singular item. Prior to voting on the consent 

agenda, the Planning & Zoning Commission may add additional items that are listed elsewhere on the 

same agenda. 

1. Approval of the July 28, 2020 Planing & Zoning Commission regular meeting minutes. 

2. Approval of a partial Plat Vacation for SUB2020-0018: Plat Vacation of Indian Point 

Estates Subdivision Lot 2A, totaling 107.80 acres out of the B.F. Hanna Survey, No. 28, 

Abstract No. 222, Hays County, TX, and recorded in Volume 9, Page 89-90 of the Hays 

County Official Public Records.  Applicant: Adrian Rosas 

BUSINESS 

3. Public hearing and discussion regarding VAR2020-0016: an application to consider 

a Waiver request to Chapter 28, Exhibit A Subdivision Ordinance, Section 14.3 

Irregular Shaped Lots to allow a Flag Lot for a property approximately 13.03 acres, 

located at 611 Butler Ranch Road (R18068)(Legal Description: A0415 Philip A. Smith 

Survey, Tracts G&M, Acres 13.03, Hays County, Texas). Action to be taken by City 

2



Administrator; No action to be taken by the Planning & Zoning Commission.  Applicant: 

Jon Thompson 

a) Presentation 

b) Staff Report 

c) Public Hearing 

4. Public hearing and consideration of recommendation regarding VAR2020-0013: 

Variance Application to consider a variance to encroach within the setback defined in 

Chapter 30, Exhibit B, Planned Development District 10, 2.4.5 (b) and the Public Utility 

Easement for two (2) corner lots within the Planned Development District No. 10 (PDD 

10) at the properties located at 133 Dome Peak Terrace and 159 Delaware Mountains 

Terrace (Lot 9, Block 9 and Lot 9, Block 10 of Big Sky Ranch, Phase 1).  Applicant: 

Christopher A. Reid, PE 

a) Presentation 

b) Staff Report 

c) Public Hearing 

d) Variance 

5. Public hearing and consideration of recommendation regarding CUP2020-0008: An 

application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow the use Mobile Food Vendor - longer 

than 10 days located at 1111 W US Highway 290, Dripping Springs, TX 78620, which is 

zoned Commercial Services.  Applicant: Jon Thompson 

a) Presentation 

b) Staff Report 

c) Public Hearing 

d) Conditional Use Permit 

6. Public hearing and consideration of recommendation regarding ZA2020-0005: an 

application for a Zoning Amendment to consider a proposed zoning map amendment 

from Agriculture (AG) to General Retail (GR) for an approximately 11.1044 acre tract 

of land situated in the E B HARGRAVES SURVEY. This property is generally located 

Southwest of the intersection of Hwy 290 and Sawyer Ranch Road (R95789).  Applicant: 

Jon Thompson 

a) Presentation 

b) Staff Report 

c) Public Hearing 

d) Zoning Amendment 

7. Public hearing and consideration of recommendation regarding ZA2020-0006: an 

application for a Zoning Amendment to consider a proposed zoning map amendment 

for three (3) tracts generally located northwest of the intersection of Bluff Street and 

Hays Street, within the Hays Street Historic District. Tracts 1 and 2 are requesting to 

rezone from Single Family-4 (SF-4) to Single Family-5 (SF-5). Tract 3 is requesting to 

rezone from SF-4 to General Retail (GR).  Applicant: Jon Thompson 

3



a) Presentation 

b) Staff Report 

c) Public Hearing 

d) Zoning Amendment 

REPORTS OF STAFF AND AGENCIES 
No action to be taken. 

8. August Planning Projects 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Planning and Zoning Commission for the City of Dripping Springs has the right to adjourn into 

executive session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss any matter as authorized by 

Texas Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), 551.072 (Deliberations about 

Real Property), 551.073 (Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551.074 (Personnel Matters), 

551.076 (Deliberations about Security Devices), and 551.086 (Economic Development). The Planning 

and Zoning Commission for the City of Dripping Springs may act on any item listed in Executive Session 

in Open Session or move any item from Executive Session to Open Session for action.  

UPCOMING MEETINGS 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meetings 

September 22, 2020 at 6:30 p.m. 

October 27, 2020 at 6:30 p.m. 

November 18, 2020 at 6:30 p.m. 

City Council & Board of Adjustment Meetings 

September 8, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. (Workshop 6:00 / Regular Meeting 6:30) 

September 15, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 

October 13, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. (Workshop 6:00 / Regular Meeting 6:30) 

October 20, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 

ADJOURN 

TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT PUBLIC NOTIFICATION & POSTING OF MEETING 

All agenda items listed above are eligible for discussion and action unless otherwise specifically 

noted.  This notice of meeting is posted in accordance with Chapter 551, Government Code, Vernon's 

Texas Codes. Annotated.  In addition, the Commission may consider a vote to excuse the absence of any 

Commissioner for absence from this meeting. 

Due to the Texas Governor Order, Hays County Order, City of Dripping Springs Disaster Declaration, 

and Center for Disease Control guidelines related to COVID-19, a quorum of this body could not be 

gathered in one place, and this meeting will be conducted through videoconferencing.  Texas Government 

Code Sections 551.045; 551.125; and 551.127. 

I certify that this notice of meeting was posted at the City of Dripping Springs City Hall and website, 

www.cityofdrippingsprings.com, on August 21, 2020 at 2:00 p.m. 

 

4



 
City Secretary 

 

This facility is wheelchair accessible. Accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for auxiliary aids and 

services must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting by calling (512) 858-4725. 

5



 

Planning & Zoning Commission  July 28, 2020 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 1 of 7 

 

Planning & Zoning Commission 

 

Regular Meeting Minutes 

July 28, 2020 at 6:30 p.m. 

 
A Regular Meeting of the Planning & Zoning Commission was held Tuesday, July 28, 2020 beginning at 

6:30 p.m. via Videoconference and in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 511 Mercer Street, Dripping 

Springs, Texas. 

 

I. VIDEOCONFERENCE MEETING 
This meeting will be held via videoconference and the public is encouraged and welcome to 

participate.  Public comment may be given during the videoconference by joining the meeting using 

the information below.  Public comment for this meeting may also be submitted to the City Secretary 

at acunningham@cityofdrippingsprings.com, no later than 4:00 p.m., Tuesday, July 28, 2020.  

 

The Planning & Zoning Commission respectfully requests that all microphones and webcams be 

disabled unless you are a member of the Commission.  City staff, consultants and presenters please 

enable your microphone and webcam when presenting to the Commission. 

 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82043301365?pwd=RVhwVzUwajdYdzdPQTU5bHczRFhJdz09  

 

Meeting ID: 820 4330 1365 

Password: 542315 

 

One tap mobile 

+13462487799,,82043301365#,,,,0#,,542315# US (Houston)  

+16699009128,,82043301365#,,,,0#,,542315# US (San Jose) 

 

Dial by your location 

        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

        +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 

        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 

        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 

        +1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 

        +1 301 715 8592 US (Germantown) 

        888 475 4499 US Toll-free 

        877 853 5257 US Toll-free 

 

Meeting ID: 820 4330 1365 

Password: 542315 

Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kcI1NHS3yC  

 

Join by Skype for Business 

https://us02web.zoom.us/skype/82043301365  

 

 

6

Item 1.

mailto:acunningham@cityofdrippingsprings.com
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82043301365?pwd=RVhwVzUwajdYdzdPQTU5bHczRFhJdz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kcI1NHS3yC
https://us02web.zoom.us/skype/82043301365


 

Planning & Zoning Commission  July 28, 2020 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 7 

II. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
Commission Members present were: 

Mim James, Chair 

James Martin, Vice Chair 

Christian Bourguignon 

John McIntosh 

Roger Newman 

Evelyn Strong 

Tammie Williamson 

 

City Staff/Appointed Officials present were: 

Andrea Cunningham, City Secretary 

Amanda Padilla, Senior Planner 

Chad Gilpin, City Engineer 

Laura Mueller, City Attorney 

Robyn Miga, Consulting City Planner 

 

With a quorum of the Commission present, Chair James called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

 Chair James led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

 

IV. PRESENTATION OF CITIZENS 
A member of the public who desires to address the Commission regarding any item on an agenda for 

an open meeting  may do so at presentation of citizens before an item or at a public hearing for an 

item during the Commission’s consideration of that item. Citizens wishing to discuss matters not 

contained within the current agenda may do so, but only during the time allotted for presentation of 

citizens. Speakers are allowed two (2) minutes to speak during presentation of citizens or during each 

public hearing.  Speakers may not cede or pool time.    Members of the public requiring the assistance 

of a translator will be given twice the amount of time as a member of the public who does not require 

the assistance of a translator to address the Commission.  It is the request of the Commission that 

members of the public wishing to speak on item(s) on the agenda with a noticed Public Hearing hold 

their comments until the item(s) are presented for consideration.  Speakers are encouraged to sign in.  

Anyone may request a copy of the City’s policy on presentation of citizens from the city secretary.  By 

law no action may be taken during Presentations of Citizens. 

 

 

 No one spoke during Presentation of Citizens. 

 

V. CONSENT AGENDA 
The following items are anticipated to require little or no individualized discussion due to their nature 

being clerical, ministerial, mundane or routine. In an effort to enhance the efficiency of 

Planning & Zoning Commission meetings, it is intended that these items will be acted upon by the 

Planning & Zoning Commission with a single motion because no public hearing or determination is 

necessary. However, a Planning & Zoning Commission Member or citizen may request separate 

deliberation for a specific item, in which event those items will be removed from the consent agenda 

prior to the Planning & Zoning Commission voting on the consent agenda as a collective, singular 

7

Item 1.



 

Planning & Zoning Commission  July 28, 2020 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 7 

item. Prior to voting on the consent agenda, the Planning & Zoning Commission may add additional 

items that are listed elsewhere on the same agenda. 

 

A. Approval of the June 23, 2020 Planning & Zoning Commission Regular meeting 

minutes. 

 

A motion was made by Vice Chair Martin to approve the June 23, 2020 Planning & Zoning 

Commission Regular meeting minutes.  Commissioner McIntosh seconded the motion 

which carried unanimously 6 to 0 to 1, with Commissioner Strong abstaining. 

B. Denial of a plat for the reasons set forth in the item SUB2020-0011: a Preliminary Plat 

for an approximately 190.317 acre tract of land situated in the Philip Smith Survey, 

Abstract NO. 415, the City of Dripping Springs, Hays County, Texas. The property is 

generally located off Sportsplex Drive.  
Applicant: Alex Granados, P.E. Kimley-Horn & Associates 

 

A motion was made by Vice Chair Martin to move Consent Item B to the Business Agenda 

for further discussion.  Commissioner Strong seconded the motion which carried 

unanimously 7 to 0. 

VI. BUSINESS 

 

 Consent Agenda Item B 

 

B. Denial of a plat for the reasons set forth in the item SUB2020-0011: a Preliminary Plat for 

an approximately 190.317 acre tract of land situated in the Philip Smith Survey, Abstract 

NO. 415, the City of Dripping Springs, Hays County, Texas. The property is generally 

located off Sportsplex Drive.  

Applicant: Alex Granados, P.E. Kimley-Horn & Associates 

 

Amanda Padilla presented the staff report which is on file.  Staff recommends denial of the plat 

due to outstanding comments required to be met in order for the plat to comply with City 

Ordinances. 

 

A motion was made by Vice Chair Martin to deny approval of a plat for the reasons set forth in 

the item SUB2020-0011: a Preliminary Plat for an approximately 190.317 acre tract of land 

situated in the Philip Smith Survey, Abstract NO. 415, the City of Dripping Springs, Hays County, 

Texas, and generally located of Sportsplex Drive.  Commissioner Strong seconded the motion 

which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 

 

A. Public hearing and consideration of recommendation regarding CUP2020-0007: 

Application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow the Use Mini-Warehouse – Self 

Storage located at 2300 W US Hwy 290, Dripping Springs TX 78620, which is Zoned 

Commercial Services. 
Applicant: Glenda Jacoby 

 

1. Presentation 

 

8

Item 1.



 

Planning & Zoning Commission  July 28, 2020 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 7 

Applicants Glenda Jacoby presented the item, and Rusty Staudt reviewed drainage plans. 

 

2. Staff Report 

 

Robyn Miga presented the staff report which is on file.  Staff recommends approval with the 

following conditions: 

1. All signage on the site that does not comply with the city’s ordinances today be 

removed and replaced with signs that meet code requirements today; 

2. The site be required to comply with the city’s lighting ordinance; 

3. Landscaping be required to be planted along the frontage of U.S. 290, including 

improving the appearance of the drainage pond that’s located adjacent to U.S. 290; 

4. U-Hauls not be stored where they can be seen from U.S. 290; 

5. The area shown for RV Storage shall comply with Section 5.13, Open Storage, of 

the city’s code of ordinances, as well as comply with zoning regulations for the 

Commercial Services District, which does not allow for more than 5% of the 

property to be utilized as open storage; and 

6. The property will be required to work with the city’s architect regarding exterior 

design requirements for the proposed structures in order to be compliant with 

Article 24.03 of the city’s code. 

 

3. Public Hearing 

 

Leigh Pollard spoke during the Public Hearing and expressed concerns regarding drainage, 

runoff and wash out related to her adjacent property. 

 

4. Conditional Use Permit 

 

A motion was made by Vice Chair Martin to recommend City Council approval of 

CUP2020-0007: Application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow the Use Mini-Warehouse 

– Self Storage located at 2300 W US Hwy 290, Dripping Springs TX 78620, which is Zoned 

Commercial Services with the condition that no more than two (2) U-Haul trucks at a time 

are parked at the front of the facility facing Highway 290, and with the following staff 

recommendations: 

1. All signage on the site that does not comply with the city’s ordinances today be 

removed and replaced with signs that meet code requirements today; 

2. The site be required to comply with the city’s lighting ordinance; 

3. Landscaping be required to be planted along the frontage of U.S. 290, including 

improving the appearance of the drainage pond that’s located adjacent to U.S. 290; 

4. No more than two U-Hauls to be stored where they can be seen from U.S. 290; 

5. The area shown for RV Storage shall comply with Section 5.13, Open Storage, of 

the city’s code of ordinances, as well as comply with zoning regulations for the 

Commercial Services District, which does not allow for more than 5% of the 

property to be utilized as open storage; and 

6. The property will be required to work with the city’s architect regarding exterior 

design requirements for the proposed structures in order to be compliant with 

Article 24.03 of the city’s code. 

Commissioner McIntosh seconded the motion which carried 6 to 0 to 1, with Commissioner 

Strong abstaining. 

9

Item 1.



 

Planning & Zoning Commission  July 28, 2020 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 5 of 7 

B. Public hearing and consideration of denial of a Plat for the reasons set forth in the item 

SUB2020-0014: A Subdivision Application for replat of property located at 720 W US 

Hwy 290 (Legal Description: JWLP Family: Lot 2, Acres 1.51, Family, Lot 3, Acres 

1.046, JWLP Family, Lot 4, ACRES 1.046, JWLP Family, Lot 5, ACRES 1.045). The 

proposed replat would combine four (4) lots to one (1). 
Applicant: Jose Cantu 

 

1. Presentation 

 

Applicant Jose Cantu presented the item and informed the Commission that documents 

required to consider approval of this item were submitted after the agenda was posted 

 

2. Staff Report 

 

Amanda Padilla presented the revised staff report which is on file.  Staff has reviewed the 

documents that were submitted late, and recommends approval of the replat with vacation 

with the following conditions: 

1. The applicant adds signature blocks for all property owners within the Original 

JWLP Family Subdivision; and 

2. Gather signatures prior to recordation of all property owners within the Original 

JWLP Family subdivision for the vacation of the subdivision. 
 

3. Public hearing 

 

No one spoke during the Public Hearing. 

 

4. Replat 

 

A motion was made by Vice Chair Martin to approve SUB2020-0014: A Subdivision 

Application for replat of property located at 720 W US Hwy 290 (Legal Description: JWLP 

Family: Lot 2, Acres 1.51, Family, Lot 3, Acres 1.046, JWLP Family, Lot 4, ACRES 1.046, 

JWLP Family, Lot 5, ACRES 1.045), combining four (4) lots to one (1) with the following 

conditions: 

1. The applicant adds signature blocks for all property owners within the Original 

JWLP Family Subdivision; and 

2. Gather signatures prior to recordation of all property owners within the Original 

JWLP Family subdivision for the vacation of the subdivision. 
Commissioner Williamson seconded the motion which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 

C. Public hearing and consideration of recommendation regarding VAR2020-0013: 

Special Exception Application to consider a special exception request to reduce the side 

setback to five (5) feet for two (2) corner lots within the Planned Development District 

No. 10 (PDD 10) at the properties located at 133 Dome Peak Terrace and 159 Delaware 

Mountains Terrace (Lot 9, Block 9 and Lot 9, Block 10 of Big Sky Ranch, Phase 1). 
Applicant: Christopher A. Reid, PE 

 

1. Presentation – No presentation. 

 

10

Item 1.



 

Planning & Zoning Commission  July 28, 2020 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 6 of 7 

2. Staff Report 

 

Amanda Padilla presented the staff report which is on file.  Staff recommends postponement 

to a date certain. 

 

3. Public Hearing 

 

No one spoke during the Public Hearing. 

 

4. Special Exception 

 

A motion was made by Vice Chair Martin to postpone VAR2020-0013: Special Exception 

Application to consider a special exception request to reduce the side setback to five (5) feet 

for two (2) corner lots within the Planned Development District No. 10 (PDD 10) at the 

properties located at 133 Dome Peak Terrace and 159 Delaware Mountains Terrace (Lot 9, 

Block 9 and Lot 9, Block 10 of Big Sky Ranch, Phase 1) to the August 25, 2020 Planning 

& Zoning Commission regular meeting.  Commissioner Strong seconded the motion which 

carried unanimously 7 to 0. 

 

The Commission directed staff to ask the applicant to provide alternate solutions related to 

the Variance Request at the August 25, 2020 Planning & Zoning Commission regular 

meeting. 

D. Public hearing and consideration of approval regarding VAR2020-0014: an 

application to consider a Variance request to Chapter 28, Exhibit A Subdivision 

Ordinance, Section 14.2 Frontage to allow subdivision of a lot that will not front an 

improved public street for a property approximately 11.0658 acres, generally located 

west of the intersection of Sawyer Ranch Road and W US Hwy 290. (Legal Description: 

R95789; A0240 E B Hargraves Survey, 11.0658 Acres, Hays County, Texas). 
Applicant: Jon Thompson 

 

1. Presentation 

 

Applicant Jon Thompson presented the item. 

 

2. Staff Report 

 

Amanda Padilla presented the staff report which is on file.  Staff recommends approval of 

the variance request. 

 

3. Public Hearing 

 

No one spoke during the Public Hearing. 

 

4. Variance 

 

A motion was made by Vice Chair Martin to approve VAR2020-0014: an application to 

consider a Variance request to Chapter 28, Exhibit A Subdivision Ordinance, Section 14.2 

11

Item 1.



 

Planning & Zoning Commission  July 28, 2020 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 7 of 7 

Frontage to allow subdivision of a lot that will not front an improved public street for a 

property approximately 11.0658 acres, generally located west of the intersection of Sawyer 

Ranch Road and W US Hwy 290.  Commissioner Williamson seconded the motion which 

carried unanimously 7 to 0. 

VII. REPORTS OF STAFF AND AGENCIES 
No action to be taken.  Reports are on file and available for review by request. 

 

A. Planning Projects 

VIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
The Planning and Zoning Commission for the City of Dripping Springs has the right to adjourn into 

executive session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss any matter as authorized by 

Texas Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), 551.072 (Deliberations 

about Real Property), 551.073 (Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551.074 (Personnel 

Matters), 551.076 (Deliberations about Security Devices), and 551.086 (Economic Development). The 

Planning and Zoning Commission for the City of Dripping Springs may act on any item listed in 

Executive Session in Open Session or move any item from Executive Session to Open Session for 

action.  

 

 The Commission did not meet in Executive Session. 

 

IX. UPCOMING MEETINGS 
 

A. Planning & Zoning Commission Meetings 
August 25, 2020 at 6:30 p.m. 

September 22, 2020 at 6:30 p.m. 

October 27, 2020 at 6: 30 p.m. 

B. City Council & Board of Adjustment Meetings 
August 11, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. (6:00 Workshop / 6:30 Regular Meeting)  

August 18, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 

September 8, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. (6:00 Workshop / 6:30 Regular Meeting)  

September 15, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 

X. ADJOURN 
 

A motion was made by Vice Chair Martin to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner Williamson 

seconded the motion which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 

 

This regular meeting adjourned at 8:12 p.m. 

12

Item 1.



 
 

 
Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting 

Planning Department Staff Report 

 
Planning and Zoning 
Commission Meeting: 

August 25, 2020 

Project Number:  SUB2020-0018 

Project Planner: Amanda Padilla, Senior Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: Indian Point Estates/Esperanza Lot 2A Plat Vacation   

Property Location:  4900 Bell Springs Rd 

Legal Description:  Indian Point Estates Subdivision 

Applicant: Adrian Rosas, TRE & Associates  

Property Owner: Esperanza 104 LLC, James Dorney 

Request: Applicant is asking to partially vacate the subdivision Indian Point Estates Lot 2A.  

Staff Recommendation  

Staff Recommends approval of the Partial plat Vacation for Lot 2A, Indian Point Estates. 
 

 
Overview 

13

Item 2.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

The applicant is requesting to Vacate a portion of the Indian Point Estates Subdivision specifically Lot 2A.  

 

 
Figure 1 

 

 

This Lot has two (2) conflicting Subdivision plats recorded, Indian Point Estates and Esperanza Phase 1 Final Plat. The 

City approved and recorded Esperanza Phase 1 Final Plat on June 17th, 2020.  

 

The property was originally platted as Indian Point with Lots 1 and 2 and was recorded in 1999 (Vol 9 page 90). This 

Subdivision Plat had dedicated Public Utility Easements (PUE): 

20’ PUE along street property lines,  

10’ PUE along the inside of the subdivision Boundary Lines 

10’ PUE on each side of Interior Lot Lines. 

 

In 2000, The Plat was replatted to enlarge Lot 1 (See Figure 1) and renaming Lots 1 and 2 to Lot 1A and Lot 2A. This 

Plat dedicated the following PUEs: 

20’ PUE along Hays County Road No 169 

10’ PUE along all other Boundary Lines 

 

Esperanza Phase 1 Final Plat creates a total of 54 Lots consisting off 48 Residential lots, Drainage, Water Quality, Parks, 

and Landscape Lots. Esperanza Phase 1 is within Lot 2A and takes up half off the Lot (See Figure 2). The New Plat, 

Esperanza Phase 1 Final Plat, has setback requirements and easements established.   

 

14

Item 2.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 
Figure 2 

 

 

Site Information 

 

Location:  

The Subject property is located off Bell Springs at 4900 Bell Springs Rd.  

 

Current Condition of Lot:  

Esperanza Phase 1 infrastructure is in place and has been dedicated and accepted by the City. Phase 2 Application will 

soon be submitted once the Plat Vacation is approved and executed.   

 

 

Summary, Recommendation, and Required Action 
The Partial Plat Vacation for Lot 2A Indian Point Estates Subdivision will help avoid any further confusion for the City 

and Hays County review for Lots and Residential Building permits.  

 

Staff recommends approval of the requested Partial Plat Vacation of Lot 2A of the Indian Point Estate 

Subdivision. 

 

 

Public Notification 

 

No Legal notice is required. All properties within in the Subdivision will have to sign off on the Plat Vacation.  

 

 

 

15

Item 2.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

Attachments 

 

Exhibit 1 – Plat Vacation Subdivision Application 

Exhibit 2 – Indian Point Estate Subdivision Plat, 1999 

Exhibit 3 – Indian Point Estate Subdivision Plat, 2000 

Exhibit 4 – Esperanza Phase 1 Final Plat Recorded 

 

 

Recommended Action: Approve the Plat Vacation 

Alternatives/Options: Deny the Plat Vacation, with comments 

Budget/Financial Impact: All fees have been paid.  

Public Comments: None Received at this time. 

Enforcement Issues: N/A 

 

16

Item 2.



17

Item 2.



18

Item 2.



19

Item 2.



20

Item 2.



21

Item 2.



22

Item 2.



23

Item 2.



24

Item 2.



25

Item 2.



26

Item 2.



27

Item 2.



28

Item 2.



29

Item 2.



30

Item 2.



31

Item 2.



32

Item 2.



33

Item 2.



34

Item 2.



35

Item 2.



36

Item 2.



 

THE STATE OF TEXAS    §  

  

COUNTY OF HAYS    §  

  

  

PARTIAL VACATION OF SUBDIVISION, TO WIT: VACATION OF LOT 

2A OF THE RESUBDIVISION OF LOT 1 AND LOT 2 INDIAN POINT 

ESTATES RECORDED IN VOL. 9, PAGES 286-287 IN HAYS COUNTY, 

TEXAS. 

  

  

WHEREAS, Esperanza 104, LLC, Owner of approximately 107.76 acres of land, more or less, 

and being part of Lot 2A, Resubdivision of Lot 1 and 2, Indian Point Estates, 

recorded in Vol. 9, Pages 286-287 of the plat records of Hays County, Texas out of 

the B.F. Hanna Survey No. 28, Abstract No. 222, in Hays County, Texas as 

conveyed to it by special warranty deed with vendor’s lien recorded in Instrument 

Number 19014537 of the official records of Hays County, Texas; and  

  

WHEREAS, on the 25th day of August 2020, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City 

of Dripping Springs, Texas, at its regular meeting, did approve the vacation of Lot 

2A of the Resubdivision of Lot 1 and 2, Indian Point Estates of that certain plat of 

record by Vol. 9, Pages 286-287 of the Plat Records of Hays County upon 

application thereof by the Owners of all land covered thereby; and   
 

 

NOW THEREFORE, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Dripping Springs, 

Texas does by these presents hereby declare that:  

  

The above recitals are true and correct and that Lot 2A of the of the Resubdivision of Lot 1 and 2, 

Indian Point Estates of that certain plat of record by Vol. 9, Pages 286-287 of the Plat Records of 

Hays County, are to be partially vacated as shown in Instrument Number 20023720 of the Plat 

Records of Hays County and the remaining 52.4 acres remain unplatted. 

  

EXECUTED THIS, the _____ day of ____________. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

37

Item 2.



City of Dripping Springs  Indian Point, Partial Plat Vacation 

Partial Vacation of Subdivision Page 2 of 3 

CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS:   

 

  

          

F.H. “Mim” James, Planning and Zoning Commission Chair   

City of Dripping Springs, Texas    

          

 

 

THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 

       § 

COUNTY OF HAYS   § 

 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared F.H. “Mim” James, 

known to me to the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument as Chair of the 

Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Dripping Springs, Texas, a municipal corporation, 

and he acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purposes and considerations therein 

expressed, in the capacity therein stated. 

 

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND SEAL OF OFFICE, this the ___th day of August 2020. 

 

 

 

 

                

        Andrea Cunningham, Notary Public 

        State of Texas 

 

 

 

Esperanza 104, LLC 

         

 

THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 

       § 

COUNTY OF HAYS   § 

 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared    

     , known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the 

foregoing instrument as      and they acknowledged to me that they 

executed the same for the purposes and consideration therein expressed, in the capacity therein 

stated. 

 

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND SEAL OF OFFICE, this the _____ day of ______________ 2020. 

 

 

38

Item 2.



City of Dripping Springs  Indian Point, Partial Plat Vacation 

Partial Vacation of Subdivision Page 3 of 3 

                

        Notary Public Signature 

        State of Texas 

Oliver Grove Partners II, LTD 

         

 

THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 

       § 

COUNTY OF HAYS   § 

 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared    

     , known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the 

foregoing instrument as      and they acknowledged to me that they 

executed the same for the purposes and consideration therein expressed, in the capacity therein 

stated. 

 

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND SEAL OF OFFICE, this the _____ day of ______________ 2020. 

 

 

                

        Notary Public Signature 

        State of Texas 

 

39

Item 2.



Planning and Zoning Commission  
Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

 

Planning and Zoning 

Commission Meeting: 
August 25, 2020 

Project No:  VAR2020-0016 

Project Planner:  Robyn Miga, Consulting City Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: Rill Subdivision Flag Lot Waiver 

Property Location: 611 Butler Ranch Road 

Legal Description: Approximately 13 acres located in the Philip A. Smith Survey, Abstract No. 415 

Applicant: Jon Thompson, J. Thompson Professional Consulting, LLC 

Property Owner: Sean & Lori Rill 

Request: 

Applicant is requesting a waiver from Chapter 28, Subdivision, Section 14.3 regarding 

irregular shaped lots, to subdivide a property utilizing flag lots which is processed 

under Subdivisions, Section 1.6.6.  

Staff Recommendation:  Staff recommends denial of the Waiver request to the City Administrator 

40

Item 3.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
Overview  

The applicant has applied to subdivide approximately 13 acres into four individual lots. The front three lots would be 

approximately 1.5 acres each, with a rear tract of approximately 8.08 acres, which would have an access drive on the east 

of the three lots, creating an irregular shaped lot/flag lot, which is prohibited by the City’s Code of Ordinances. 

 

The City’s Code of Ordinances, found in Chapter 28, Subdivision, Section 14.3, states that flag lots are prohibited, and 

that the city reserves the right to disapprove any lot which, in its sole opinion, will not be suitable or desirable for the 

purposed intended, which is an obvious attempt to circumvent the purpose and intent of lot or unit configuration or lot or 

unit width minimums, or which is so oddly shaped as to create a hindrance to the logical lot or unit layout of surrounding 

properties.  Section 1.6 of the Subdivision Ordinance states that exceptions related to Irregular-Shaped Lots are processed 

as administrative waivers under 1.6.6(m).   

While the entry point to the rear lot does meet the minimum lot frontage requirement of 30’, the subdivision would allow 

for a flag lot that does not make sense for the natural flow of the subdivision and Butler Ranch road.  

Flag Lot definition: 

Lot, Flag: A lot located behind another lot connected to the street by an area narrower than the full lot width. Also 

known as a panhandle lot. 

Surrounding Properties 

The property is located in the city’s extra territorial jurisdiction (ETJ), and many of the adjacent properties are also in 

the city’s ETJ. There is a small portion of the area zoned SF-1.  

 

Property History 

41

Item 3.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
The applicant has not made any other requests before the Commission, but should this waiver be approved, the applicant 

will be moving forward with a subdivision plat.  The Waiver is analyzed under 1.6 Waivers of the Subdivision Ordinance. 

 

Approval Criteria for Waivers (1.6-Subdivision Ordinance) 

Approval Criteria Staff Comments 

1. Granting the waiver will not be detrimental to 

the public safety, health or welfare, and will 

not be injurious to other property or to the 

owners of other property, and the waiver will 

not prevent the orderly subdivision of other 

property in the vicinity 

While granting this waiver may not be detrimental to the 

public safety, health, or welfare, and will not be injurious 

to other property per se, it does not create an orderly 

subdivision of property. While the potential property 

owners who would be aware of the conditions when 

purchasing the frontage lots, it is once the rear property is 

contemplated for future development or subdivision that 

this may create issues in the future. The code speaks 

against the creation of flag lots, which does not make for 

orderly development.  

2. The conditions upon which the request for a 

waiver is based are unique to the property for 

which the waiver is sought, and are not 

applicable generally to other property; and 

 The applicant is requesting the waiver because there is an 

existing home on the Lot 1 today. Subdivision could be 

possible with-out the waiver. The applicant has not 

presented a hardship.   

3. Because of the particular physical 

surroundings, shape and/or topographical 

conditions of the specific property involved, a 

particular hardship to the property owner 

would result, as distinguished from a mere 

inconvenience, if the strict letter of these 

regulations is carried out; and 

The applicant has not presented any topographic or 

physical conditions on the site that would create an undue 

hardship to the property owner should they not be granted 

the waiver.  

4. The waiver will not in any manner vary the 

provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, Planned 

Development District Ordinance, or 

Comprehensive Plan, or any other adopted 

plan(s) or ordinance(s) of the City 

  

This property is located in the city’s ETJ and will not be 

subject to the provisions of the zoning ordinance.  

5. An alternate design will generally achieve the 

same result or intent as the standards and 

regulations prescribed herein 

The applicant could configure the lots in such a way that 

the irregular shaped lot is not necessary, therefore 

meeting the City’s Code criteria against irregular shaped 

lots/ Flag Lots.  

6. The waiver will enable the applicant to 

preserve more native trees, provide more open 

space, or ensure more wildlife preservation 

than would be possible complying with the 

strict mandates of this Chapter.  

Not applicable to this subdivision.  

 

Summary and Recommendation 

Based on the above findings Staff believe that the intent of the code is not being met, and that granting the waiver will 

cause harm to the properties within the vicinity and the lots requesting the variance. Staff recommends denial of the 

waiver request to City Administrator.  

42

Item 3.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
Public Notification 

Notice was placed on the City Website 

Attachments 

Exhibit 1 – Waiver Application 

Exhibit 2 – Image of Lots  

Exhibit 3 – Public Comments 

Recommended Action No action required by the Commission; recommendation will be made to the 

City Administrator.   

Budget/Financial impact N/A 

Public comments Staff has received comments from seven (7) residents in this neighborhood who 

are all opposed to this waiver request.  

Enforcement Issues  N/A 

Comprehensive Plan Element N/A 

 

43

Item 3.



44

Item 3.



Planning and Zoning Commission  
Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

 

 

Planning and Zoning 

Commission Meeting: 
August 25, 2020 

Project No:  VAR2020-0013 

Project Planner:  Amanda Padilla, Senior Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: Big Sky Ranch Phase 1 Encroachment/Setback Variance 

Property Location: 133 and 159 Dome Peak Terrace, Dripping Springs TX 78620 

Legal Description: Big Sky Ranch Phase 1 Final Plat 

Applicant: Christopher A Reid, PE, Doucet & Associates 

Property Owner: Meritage Homes 

Request: 

Applicant is requesting a variance to encroach within the setback defined in Chapter 

30, Exhibit B, Planned Development District 10, 2.4.5 (b) and the Public Utility 

Easement 

Staff Recommendation:  Staff recommends denial of the Variance request 

45

Item 4.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
Overview  

The applicant is requesting a variance to encroach into the setbacks defined in Chapter 30, Exhibit B, Planned 

Development District 10, 2.4.5 (b) Minimum Side yard and the Public Utility Easement.  The applicant is asking to 

encroach two and a half feet (2.5’) into the seven and a half foot (7.5’) setback and five feet (5’) into the ten foot (10’) 

PUE for Block 9, Lot 9 and Block 10, Lot 9. See Below Image: 

 

Below is the section of the code of ordinances that defines side yard setbacks: 

2.4.5 Setbacks      

b.     Minimum Side Yard: Building setbacks shall be five (5) feet; provided, however corner lots will be 

set back a minimum of seven and one half (7.5) feet from the street right-of-way. 

Both lots are corner lots in this request, and both abut an alley street right-of-way. The lots adjacent in Block 11 have 

garages facing the side property lines of the Lots requesting this variance. The Planned Development District does not 

define streets or alleys, so the City reverts to the Zoning Ordinance definition. The Zoning Ordinance definition of Alleys 

is below: 

Alley: A minor right-of-way that affords a secondary means of vehicular access to the back or side of properties 

otherwise abutting a street, and which may be used for public utility purposes. 

This definition indicates that side setbacks for Big Sky Ranch shall be seven and a half feet (7.5’) from the alley. Block 9, 

Lot 9 and Block 10 Lot 9 both have a seven and a half foot (7.5’) Building Line Setback and a Public Utility Easement.  

Big Sky Ranch Planned Development District has a base zoning of SF-3, SF-3 side setbacks are listed below:  

Minimum Side Yard Setback: Five feet (5'); corner lots - seven and one-half feet (7-1/2') from the street right-of-

way. 

Both the PDD and the City’s Code of Ordinance outline a seven and a half foot (7.5’) side setback for Corner Lots. The 

side setback for these lots also have a seven and a half foot (7.5’) Public Utility Easement for utilities. Exhibit 4 shows the 

intended utilities for all off Big Sky Ranch Phase 1. 

The lots requesting the variance side façade of their home would be facing another residents garage (See Figure 1). The 

setback of 7.5 feet is already a short setback and limiting it further could lead to a safety issue.  For example, the design of 

the lots could lead to residents driving into the side of the house when reversing out of their garage or while turning the 

corner into the alley. The alley Right of Way width is twenty feet (20’) and the pavement width is seventeen feet (17’).  

46

Item 4.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 

  

 

Figure 1: Images of properties that have the required 7.5’ setback. 

Surrounding Properties 

The current zoning and existing uses of the adjacent properties/lots to the north, south, east, and west are within the 

Planned Development District 11. The Development is a dense development that can develop with no more than 780 

LUEs, for Tract 1 of the Development.  

 

Property History 

In 2018, City Council approved Annexation, Zoning, and the Preliminary Plat for the Big Sky Ranch Development. In 

2019 the Big Sky Ranch Phase 1 Final Plat was approved by City Council. In 2020 the applicant had a minor modification 

that reduced the Building Width from 25 feet to 23.5 feet. When the applicant was applying for building permits, they 

discovered that Block 9 Lot 9 and Block 10 Lot 9 were unbuildable and unable to meet the Planned Development District 

and City Code of Ordinances requirements for Building Width and Side setbacks. Thus, the applicant is applying to 

encroach within the Building Line setbacks and PUE so that they can meet the building width requirement. 

Approval Criteria for Variances (2.22.2-Zoning Ordinance) 

Approval Criteria Staff Comments 
1. there are special circumstances or conditions 

affecting the land involved such that the literal 

enforcement of the provisions of this Chapter 

would deprive the applicant of the reasonable use 

of the land; and 

There are not special circumstances or conditions that 

would deprive the applicant of reasonable use of the land, 

although there would not be the ability to build a home on 

each lot.  Alternative uses that could benefit the 

development could be placed on the property, such as 

open space.    

2. the variance is necessary for the preservation and 

enjoyment of a substantial property right of the 

applicant; and By preserving the natural features 

and topography of the land; and 

Currently the property is owned by Meritage homes that 

is developing the entire subdivision, so the variance is not 

necessary for preservation and enjoyment of the property 

or subdivision as a whole.  

3. the granting of the variance will not be detrimental 

to the public health, safety or welfare, or injurious 

to other property within the area; and 

The variance will be detrimental to the safety of the lots 

due to adjacent properties potentially reversing into the 

structure or hitting the side of the lot. Lots similar to 

these lots in the subdivision also have A/C units within 

the setback, which is allowed by code, that could be 

47

Item 4.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 

closer to the property line if the setback is reduced.  

 

4. the granting of the variance constitutes a minimal 

departure from this Chapter; and 

The granting of this variance could be considered 

minimal from the Chapter 30, Exhibit B, Planned 

Development District 10, 2.4.5 (b), because it will reduce 

the setback by just 2.5’ feet but 2.5’ in this instance can 

be a major departure due to safety of the lots and 

surrounding lots. 7.5 feet is the smallest setback for Main 

buildings that the City has for residential lots that abut a 

street.  

 

5. the subject circumstances or conditions giving rise 

to the alleged hardship are not self-imposed, are 

not based solely on economic gain or loss, and do 

not generally affect most properties in the vicinity 

of the property; and 

This is a self-imposed hardship the applicant was aware 

of the size of the house to be built and the setbacks put in 

place by the PDD.  

6. Granting the variance is in harmony with the spirit, 

general purpose, and intent of this Chapter so that:  

a.  the public health, safety and welfare may 

be secured; and  

b. that substantial justice may be done. 

The granting of this variance does not meet the intent of 

the code, which is to provide safety to the lots and 

surrounding lots.  

 

Summary and Recommendation 

Based on the above findings Staff believe that the intent of the code is not being met, and that granting the variance will 

cause harm to the properties within the vicinity and the lots requesting the variance. Staff recommends denial of the 

variance request.  

 

Public Notification 

A legal notice advertising the public hearing was placed in the Dripping Springs Century-News (July 9, 2020), signs were 

posted on the-site, notice was placed on the City Website, and all property owners within a 300-foot radius of the site 

were notified of the request. 

Meeting Schedule 

Past Meetings:  

July 28, 2020 Planning and Zoning Commission - Postponed 

August 11, 2020 Board of Adjustment/City Council – Postponed 

Next Meetings: 

August 25, 2020 Planning and Zoning Commission 

September 8, 2020 Board of Adjustment/City Council  

Attachments 

Exhibit 1 – Variance Application 

Exhibit 2 – Image of Lots  

48

Item 4.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
Exhibit 3 – Example Plot Plan  

Exhibit 4 – PEC and Texas Gas Utilities distribution  

Exhibit 5 – Big Sky Ranch Phase 1 recorded Final Plat  

Exhibit 6 – Photos taken by staff 

Recommended Action Recommend denial of the variance  

Alternatives/Options Recommend approval of the requested variance with staff and any additional 

conditions deemed necessary by the Commission; recommend approval of the 

variance with no or alternate conditions.  

Budget/Financial impact N/A 

Public comments None received at this time 

Enforcement Issues  N/A 

Comprehensive Plan Element N/A 

 

49

Item 4.



50

Item 4.



51

Item 4.



52

Item 4.



53

Item 4.



54

Item 4.



`

55

Item 4.



56

Item 4.



57

Item 4.



N

· SIDEWALKS PER CITY OR SUBDIVISION REQUIREMENTS

· SIZE, SHAPE, AND LOCATION OF DRIVEWAY TO BE VERIFIED BY BUILDER

58

Item 4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' B.S.L. (PER P.D.D.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00°46'38" W ~ 115.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00°46'38" E ~ 76.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89°13'22" E ~ 29.71'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' P.U.E. (PER PLAT) 10' B.S.L. (PER P.D.D.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89°13'22" E  ~ 9.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' P.U.E. (PER PLAT) 10' B.S.L. (PER P.D.D.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.5' B.S.L. (PER P.D.D.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2 

AutoCAD SHX Text
146 SQ. FT. OF  ENCROACHMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' ALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
COV'D ENTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 9  BLOCK 9 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOOT PRINT PLAN 2414 B1

AutoCAD SHX Text
133 DOME PEAK TERRACE (50' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' ALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
COV'D OUTDOOR LIVING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uSCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SYMBOLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOUNDARY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY PIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
REASON

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE ISSUED

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
 BUILDER SHALL LOCATE AND VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS, BUILDING SETBACKS, EASEMENTS AND BUILDING PLACEMENTS  OR COMPLIANCE WITH ALL ORDINANCES AND RESTRICTIONS, AND SHALL NOTIFY THIS OFFICE OF ANY ERRORS, OMISSIONS OR DISCREPANCIES PRIOR TO THE ONSET OF CONSTRUCTION. THIS PLOT PLAN HAS BEEN DRAWN BASED ON INFORMATION GIVEN ON THE PLAT PROVIDED BY THE BUILDER AND IS SUBJECT TO ANY AND ALL BUILDING LINES, EASEMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS NOT SHOWN HERE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Path:

AutoCAD SHX Text
www.ats-engineers.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
Inspectors

AutoCAD SHX Text
Engineers

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATS

AutoCAD SHX Text
& Surveyors

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
MERITAGE HOMES

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.T.S. JOB#:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(512) 328-6995

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX:  (512) 328-6996

AutoCAD SHX Text
4910 WEST HWY 290

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUSTIN, TEXAS  78735

AutoCAD SHX Text
TBPLS Firm Reg. #10126000

AutoCAD SHX Text
R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
133 DOME PEAK TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT: 9, BLOCK: 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINAL PLAT OF BIG SKY RANCH  PHASE ONE AT DRIPPING SPRINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPLOT PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Projects\Meritage\BigSkyRanch1\PlotPlans\PlotPlans\P-009-009-BSR-1.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/20/2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
MZ

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
20051154s

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.D.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD DIRECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURVE DATA TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 17%%D48'19" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.64'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARC LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.86'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
39.27'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 44%%D13'22" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.36'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN DOES NOT FIT ON LOT ENCROACHING SIDE B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE NOTE: TREES SHALL BE IN THE FRONT OF A RESIDENTIAL LOT, INCLUDING AT LEAST ONE (1) REQUIRED TREE PLANTED IN THE FRONT YARD. PDD 10 REQUIRES TWO 3-INCH TREES. 



59

Item 4.



60

Item 4.



LS

SG

SG

S
G

S
G

S
G

END OF PHASE 1

STUBBED PRIMARY
FOR PHASE 2

STUBBED PRIMARY
FOR PHASE 2

STUBBED PRIMARY
FOR PHASE 2

BC PHASE AB PHASE

600A TRUNK LINE

600A TRUNK LINE

36

56

56

56

56 56

74

74

74

74

56

74

74

56

56

56

36

36

36

74

74

74

74

74

74

100'

STUBBED PRIMARY
FOR PHASE 2

STUBBED PRIMARY
FOR PHASE 2

Pedernales Electric

C
oo

pe
ra

tiv
e,

 I
nc

.

P
CE

Disclaimer: This product is for informational purposes only and was not prepared for or suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represents only the approximate relative location of the property boundaries and facilities. This
product is distributed "AS-IS" and without warranties of any kind, either expressed or implied,
including but not limited to warranties of fitness for a particular purpose or use, or as to its
performance, accuracy, freedom from error, or as to any results generated through it's use.

A phase
Phasing

Transformer

Proposed 200A Primary
Proposed 600A Primary
Secondary

Secondary Pedestal

LEGEND

BIG SKY RANCH -
PHASE I

NOT TO SCALE

j. niemeyer

21-Nov-18

N:\Jeff Niemeyer\CAD\Big Sky Ranch\site plan (lot lines).dwg

B phase
C phase

Primary Enclosure

SG Switch Gear

AB / BC phase
ABC phase

61

Item 4.



62

Item 4.



63

Item 4.



64

Item 4.



65

Item 4.



66

Item 4.



67

Item 4.



68

Item 4.



69

Item 4.



70

Item 4.



71

Item 4.



72

Item 4.



73

Item 4.



74

Item 4.



75

Item 4.



76

Item 4.



77

Item 4.



78

Item 4.



Planning and Zoning Commission  

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

Planning and Zoning 

Commission Meeting: 
August 25, 2020 

Project No:  CUP2020-0008 

Project Planner:  Amanda Padilla, Senior Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: Bykowski Tailor & Garb 

Property Location: 1111 W US Highway 290, Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

Legal Description: DRIPPING SPRINGS HEIGHTS LOT 1 BLK B GEO#90402468 

Applicant: Jon Thompson, J Thompson Professional Consulting 

Property Owner: Trailhead Market Limited 

Request: 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a Mobile Food Vendor – Longer than 10 days use 

within the Commercial Services (CS) Zoning District  

Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the requested CUP with conditions. 

79

Item 5.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
Overview 

The applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow a Mobile Food Vendor – Longer than 10 days to be 

located at 1111 W US Highway 290. The Property is located within the Commercial Services (CS) zoning district. Mobile 

Food Vendors longer than 10 days are permitted in the CS zoning district with an approved Conditional Use Permit. Per 

the City’s Zoning Ordinance that was amended on April 10, 2018, Sec. 30.05.009 (C), If any mobile food vendor remains 

at a same location for longer than 10 consecutive days, a Conditional Use Permit is required. If after 10 days, a Mobile 

Food Vendor wishes to relocate to a different location within the city, the vendor may do so for an additional 5 days. In 

any given month, a vendor may not locate within the city limits for more than 15 days without a CUP per the requirements 

in this section. A Conditional Use Permit is required to establish Mobile Food Vendor longer than 10 days, following 

procedures for CUPs per chapter 30, exhibit A: section 3.17 of the Code of Ordinances. 

The Applicant would like to have one (1) Mobile Food Vendor permanently located at the property to complement the 

business that will be located inside a suite [see exhibit 6] located at 1111 W US Hwy 290. The applicant is wanting to 

operate as a general merchandise retail store and restaurant. The Mobile Food Trailer would constitute the food 

component of the business. This location would offer clothing, hats, leather goods, footwear, apothecary, teas, books, 

oddities, curiosities, gifts, taxidermy, home décor, a bulk candy store, and full food and bar service. The Bar is not a part 

of this CUP because the Business will hold a food and beverage certificate.(The selling of alcohol beverages shall not be 

allowed within 300 feet of School District Property unless the business holds a food and beverage certificate issued by the 

Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission (TABC) [Per Sec 6.04.002 of the City’s Code of Ordinance].) It’s noteworthy that 

the reason the applicant is requesting the CUP for the Mobile Food Vendor is directly related to the business owner’s 

intent to also serve alcohol. 

The Mobile Food Vendor will be located at the rear of the building [See Exhibit 2] and will need to comply with the 

setbacks required in Commercial Services, see below table 1.  

 Setback Code requirement 

Front 
Twenty-five feet (25'); all yards adjacent to a street shall be considered a 

front yard. See Section 5 for any additional setback requirements. 

Rear Twenty-five feet (25') 

Side 
Fifteen feet (15'); twenty-five feet (25') adjacent to a public street or 

residential lot. 

Adjacent to a Single-

Family District 

Any commercial use that is located adjacent to (and not across the street 

from) any single-family zoning district shall be set back from the 

applicable residential district property line by sixty feet (60'). 
Table 1 setback requirements 

The proposed location for the Mobile food Vendor would be on existing concrete and would not add any additional 

impervious cover, if any additional impervious cover is added a Site Plan application may be required.  

Utilities are below: 

Water: Dripping Springs Water Supply Corporation 

Wastewater:  The Mobile Food Vendor will be pumped on a regular basis by a licensed wastewater hauler 

Electricity: Existing PEC connection 

The Mobile Food Vendor is located on the same lot as the Railroad Barbeque restaurant. Per Section 30.05.008 (k) All 

mobile food vendors are prohibited from being located within 150 feet of a restaurant as defined in Chapter 30, exhibit A, 

Section 1.6 of the City's Code, measured from property line of the mobile food vendor to the property line of the 

restaurant, unless granted permission from all said restaurants. The noise level of mechanical equipment or outside sound 

equipment used in association with any Mobile Food Vendor may not exceed 70 decibels when measured at the property 

line. The Applicant received a Letter from Railroad BBQ granting permission to be within 150 feet of their 

location/property [See Exhibit 5]. 

80

Item 5.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
Background information on TABC Requirements for Food and Beverage Certificates:   

 TABC Criteria for Food and Beverage Certificate from TABC Website Alcoholic beverage sales cannot 

exceed 60% of the total gross receipts of the licensed premise.  

 You must have and maintain food service facilities for the preparation and service of multiple entrees: 

o Food service facilities means a portion of the license premises where food is stored and prepared 

primarily for on premise consumption. 

o Multiple entrees means no fewer than eight (8) different entrees per meal period must be available to 

customers. 

o Entrée means the main dish of a meal 

You must furnish the following, as well as any other information that might be deemed reasonably necessary by the 

commission to demonstrate qualifications for a Food and Beverage Certificate: 

 Sales data or, if not available, projection of sales which should include breakdown of food, alcoholic beverages 

and other major categories at the location. 

 Copies of floor plans of the licensed premise indicating areas devoted to preparation and service of food and those 

devoted primarily to the preparation and service of alcoholic beverages. 

 Failure to submit the documentation requested or to accurately maintain required records is prima facie evidence 

of non-compliance to hold a Food and Beverage Certificate. (See Rule 33.5 

The holder of a Food and Beverage Certificate (FB) shall also maintain purchase invoices for alcoholic beverages to be 

maintained by the vendor. These records must be retained for four (4) years, and be made available for inspection and 

review by any authorized representative of the commission. 

 

Surrounding Properties 

 

81

Item 5.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 
The current zoning and existing uses of the adjacent properties to the north, south, east, and west are outlined in the 

table below: 

Direction Zoning District Existing Use Comprehensive Plan 

North Commercial Services (CS) 
Undeveloped/ Single 

Family residential 

Adjacent to the 

Activity Node- Mixed 

Use Activity Center  

East Commercial Services (CS) Undeveloped 

South 

Commercial Services 

(CS)/ Single Family 

Residential- Moderate 

Density (SF-2) 

Single Family Residential 

West Commercial Services (CS) Undeveloped 

 

1111 W US Highway 290 currently has a restaurant (Railroad Barbeque), retail store (Cowgirls and Lace), and vacant 

store fronts. The Shopping Center has primarily been used for retail purposes.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Approval Criteria for Conditional Use Permit Review (3.17.6-Zoning Ordinance) 

Approval Criteria Staff Comments 

1. The proposed use at the specified location is 

consistent with the policies embodied in the 

The Comprehensive plan is supportive of commercial 

development 

82

Item 5.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 

Comprehensive Plan;  

2. The proposed use is consistent with the general 

purpose and intent of the applicable zoning district 

regulations; 

The zoning district is Commercial Services (CS), which 

permits a wide array of commercial and retail uses. 

Mobile Food Vendor Courts are permitted in the CS 

zoning district with the approval of a Conditional Use 

Permit (CUP).  The City relies on the certificates issued 

by the TABC to make alcohol zoning determinations.  If 

the Applicant is not able to obtain or maintain a food and 

beverage certificate through the TABC they will need to 

obtain a Bar CUP from the City and would also need to 

obtain a variance due to its location.   

3. The proposed use meets all supplemental standards 

specifically applicable to the use, as established in 

the Development Standards, Section 5; 

The applicant will need to meet all development 

standards.  

 

4. The proposed use is compatible with and preserves 

the character and integrity of adjacent 

development and neighborhoods, and (as required 

by the particular circumstances) includes 

improvements or modifications (either on-site or 

within the public rights-of-way) to mitigate 

development-related adverse impacts, including 

but not limited to the following: 

 

a. Adequate ingress and egress to 

property and proposed structures 

thereon with particular reference to 

vehicular and pedestrian safety and 

convenience, and access in case of 

fire; 

This use will be complementing the existing building on 

the property. The current building has adequate ingress 

and egress to the property. 

b. Off-street parking areas, loading areas, 

and pavement type; 

The applicant will be required to add 3 additional spaces 

or if they choose to utilize existing parking, they will 

need to gain approval from the property owner and the 

City Administrator. The City has yet to receive this 

request. 

c. Refuse and service areas; 

 

Solid waste disposal will be handled with the existing 

onsite dumpster which is east of the main building.   

d. Utilities with reference to location, 

availability, and compatibility; 

The site has existing water from DSWSC; there is an 

existing septic system that was permitted for the 

convenience store, however, the food trailer will not be 

allowed to dump its waste into the septic system, it will 

be pumped on a regular basis by a licensed wastewater 

hauler; electricity is existing service with PEC. 

e. Screening and buffering, features to 

minimize visual impacts, and/or 

setbacks from adjacent uses; 

There is a green space/septic field between the food 

trailer location and the nearest property. As well there are 

trees and shrubbery between the food trailer location and 

the nearest neighbor. It is screened from the highway by 

the main building, it will be set back off of the side street 

by a significant distance and is partially screened by the 

smaller building on the west side of the property 

f. Control of signs, if any; 

 

Signage will be done with a separate permit and will need 

to comply with the Current Sign Ordinance in effect. Any 

variances will require approval.  

g. Control of exterior lighting with 

reference to glare, traffic safety, 

This property is within the City Limits and is required to 

comply with the Lighting Ordinance. No plan has been 

83

Item 5.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 

economic effect, and compatibility 

and harmony with properties in the 

district; 

submitted to date. 

h. Required yards and open space; 

 

The Applicant will need to comply with the required yard 

setback within the Commercial Services District. 

i. Height and bulk of structures; 

 

Applicant shall comply with the Commercial Service 

zoning district height and bulk requirements.  

j. Hours of operation; 

 

Proposed Mobile Food Vendor hours of operation:  

 

Sunday- Thursday: 9:00am - 8:00pm 

Friday-Saturday: 9:00am - 10:00pm 

 

 

k. Exterior construction material, 

building design, and building facade 

treatment; 

Mobile Food Vendors do not have to comply with our 

Exterior Design Ordinance, but they do have to comply 

with our Sign Ordinance and applicable Sign Codes.  

l. Roadway adjustments, traffic-control 

devices or mechanisms, and access 

restrictions to control traffic flow or 

divert traffic as may be needed to 

reduce or eliminate development-

generated traffic on neighborhood 

streets; and 

Not Applicable.  

m. Provision for pedestrian 

access/amenities/areas; 

Pedestrian access will be through the store itself which 

will have a door opening out onto the courtyard in front 

of the food trailer. The applicant will also provide picnic 

tables for people to sit if they choose. 

5. The proposed use is not materially detrimental to 

the public health, safety, convenience and welfare, 

or results in material damage or prejudice to other 

property in the vicinity; and, 

 

While the establishing the proposed food vendor court is 

not detrimental or damaging to the surround properties, 

establishing this property with a food establishment does 

allow a bar, so long as they’re able to obtain a food and 

beverage certificate through TABC, at this location, 

which is within 300’ of a school.  

Staff finds that the proposed mobile food vendor court 

use will not be detrimental or damaging to the 

surrounding properties, these properties being similarly 

commercially zoned. The property that is zoned Single-

family to the south is far enough that impact will be 

minimal.  

6. Noise;  

The applicant is not proposing amplified music but is 

planning for acoustic music. The applicant would be 

required to adhere to all state laws regarding noise.  

  

7. Odors; and The applicant would be required to adhere to all state 

laws regarding nuisances. 

8. Dust. The applicant would be required to adhere to all state 

laws regarding nuisances.  

Summary 

Based on the proposed land use, adjacent land uses, the opportunity to attract more individuals to the area, and increase 

sales tax staff recommends approval of the requested CUP with the following conditions: 

1. Hours of Operation:  
84

Item 5.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 

a. Sunday- Thursday: 9:00am - 8:00pm 

b. Friday-Saturday: 9:00am - 10:00pm 

2. No pedestrian flow or access from Bonnie Drive 

3. Applicant shall provide a screening wall along rear property line made of solid masonry or wood. The wall shall 

be no less than six feet (6’), no more than eight feet (8’), in conjunction with landscaping elements on the 

property line 

4. No outside speakers or amplified music is permitted 

5. Decibel level shall not exceed 85 decibels per the Texas Penal Code, Title 9, Section 42.01 (c)(2) 

6. The mobile food vendor shall not be placed on the property until the business receives a Certificate of Occupancy 

from the City Building Official for Bykowski Tailor and Garb, the business it shall be a part of.   

7. All Trash at the rear of the property is to be cleaned up and maintained.  

8. Applicant shall provide calculations from an engineer demonstrating that the remaining vegetative filter strip area 

provides required capacity for water quality compliance.  If it does not, water quality facilities shall be added to 

achieve compliance. 

9. The CUP will be tied to the Certificate of Occupancy for Bykowski Tailor and Garb.  

10. The applicant be required to submit TABC food and beverage certificate and any other related permits to the 

Planning Department yearly.  If the applicant loses its food and beverage certificate at any time, but continues to 

serve alcohol, it will be required to obtain a CUP from the City and obtain a variance based on its location.  

 

The below is an excerpt of the Code for the procedures that P&Z should take for CUPS.   

Chapter 30 Exhibit A Zoning Ordinance Sec 3.17.5 Procedures for CUPs:  

(a)     P&Z Recommendation: Following the public hearing, the P&Z shall recommend approval, approval subject 

to modification, or denial of the proposal to the City Council. If the appropriateness of the use cannot be assured 

at the location, the P&Z shall recommend denial of the application as being incompatible with existing uses or 

with other uses permitted by right in the district. 

 

Public Notification 

A legal notice advertising the public hearing was placed in the Dripping Springs Century-News, signs were posted on the-

site, notice was placed on the City Website, and all property owners within a 300-foot radius of the site were notified of 

the request. 

Meetings Schedule 

August 25, 2020 – Planning and Zoning Commission 

September 8, 2020 - City Council Meeting 

 

Attachments 

Exhibit 1: Conditional Use Permit Application 

Exhibit 2: Concept Plan 

Exhibit 3: Project Summary (Submitted by Applicant) 

Exhibit 4: Floor Plan 

Exhibit 5: Letter from Railroad BBQ 

Exhibit 6: Suite to be occupied by business 

 

 

 

Recommended Action: Recommend approval of the requested Conditional Use Permit, with staff and any 

additional conditions deemed necessary by the Commission. 

Alternatives/Options: Recommend denial of the Conditional Use Permit; recommend approval of the 

Conditional Use Permit with no or alternate conditions. 

85

Item 5.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 

Budget/Financial Impact:    None calculated at this time, but the City would receive additional sales tax revenue. 

Public Comments: Staff has received public comments and has attached the comments to the Packet 

Enforcement Issues: N/A 

Comprehensive Plan 
Element: 

Support the expansion of business and professional services 

Support Tourism related businesses 

 

86

Item 5.



{Tenant: Bykowski Tailor & Garb}

{1516 Live Oak Canyon Road, Dripping Springs, TX 78620

(805) 607-9888 cdbykowski@hotmail.com

87

Item 5.

jthom
Highlight

jthom
Highlight

jthom
Highlight



{Bldg B, Stes 4 & 5}

XXX
one

88

Item 5.

jthom
Highlight

jthom
Highlight



89

Item 5.



CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT SUBMITTAL 

All required items and information (including all applicable above listed exhibits and fees) must be received by 

the City for an application and request to be considered complete. Incomplete submissions will not be accepted. 

By sign that I have read through and met the above requirements for a complete 

submitt 

Applican 

□ 

□ 

June 2 

Date 

Completed Application Form - including all required signatures and notarized 

PDF/Digital Copies of all submitted Documents 

When submitting digital files, a cover sheet must be included outlining what 

digital contents are included. 

Application Fee (refer to Fee Schedule) 

Billing Contact Form 

Outdoor Lighting Ordinance Compliance Agreement - signed with attached 

photos/drawings (required if marked "Yes (Required)" on above Lighting

Ordinance Section of application) 

Legal Description 

Plans 

Maps/Site Plan/Plat 

Architectural Elevation (if applicable) 

Explanation for request (attach extra sheets if necessary) 

Public Notice Sign (refer to Fee Schedule) 

Proof of Ownership-Tax Certificate or Deed 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com 
Page 4 of 4 

90

Item 5.



91

Item 5.



From: Jon Thompson
To: Amanda Padilla
Cc: Brandon Elliott; Alicia Lundy-Morse
Subject: CUP 2020-0008 Mobile Food Vendor
Date: Wednesday, August 12, 2020 10:30:46 PM
Attachments: Exhibit for CUP 2020.pdf

Amanda,
1. Letter from all Restaurants on the property and 150 ft from the property line giving the

applicant permission to have a Mobile Food Truck at the location proposed.
A letter from Railroad BBQ has been requested. It should have been dropped off by
Railroad BBQ at City Hall. 

2. If amplified music is proposed, we ask that you request that prior to P&Z and CC
There would be no amplified music outside. If there's any amplified music it would be
inside. Any outside music would be acoustic. 

3. 3 additional parking spaces or if you plan to utilize existing parking a letter requesting that
which should be approved by the business owner and the City.

Can you clarify? The sentence syntax isn't clear as to what you're asking for. I think
you're asking for an additional 3 spaces, which if so, we can provide that in the back of
the property near the food trailer. An exhibit will be provided. 

4. The below items addressed:

 

(1)     Adequate ingress and egress to property and proposed structures thereon with
particular reference to vehicular and pedestrian safety and convenience, and access in
case of fire;

The property has an existing parking lot in the front of the building. This is where the
guest parking will be primarily for the store, whose customers will be frequenting the
food trailer as a part of the shopping experience. While additional parking has been
requested since this is a mobile food trailer, this food trailer's operation is as a
complement to the rest of the business operation and not as a separate business.
Effectively, it is to be operated as the kitchen for the customers to pick up their food and
sit in the proposed courtyard area. 

(2)     Off-street parking areas, loading areas, and pavement type;

The parking, as mentioned above, is a part of the existing building's operation and will
be the same for the store for which the food trailer will be serving as their kitchen
preparing food for people to order and pick up while dining either on the courtyard or
inside the store while browsing. The parking is asphalt. All items delivered to the food
trailer will be delivered on the side of the building near the smaller building on the west
side. 

(3)     Refuse and service areas;

The refuse and service area is to the east of the main building where all other waste is
collected. 

92

Item 5.

mailto:jthompsonconsultingds@gmail.com
mailto:apadilla@cityofdrippingsprings.com
mailto:belliott@cityofdrippingsprings.com
mailto:alundymorse@cityofdrippingsprings.com



 


Exhibit for CUP 2020-0008 Mobile Food Trailer 


OSSF Drainfield 
Vegetative Filter Strip 


 


Route for food trailer to be 
brought in on existing pavement 
and dirt area not on top of OSSF 
and VFS. 


Extent of 
drainfield 







(4)     Utilities with reference to location, availability, and compatibility;

The site has existing water from DSWSC; there is an existing septic system that was
permitted for the convenience store, however, the food trailer will not be allowed to
dump its waste into the septic system, it will be pumped on a regular basis by a licensed
wastewater hauler; electricity is existing service with PEC. 

(5)     Screening and buffering, features to minimize visual impacts, and/or setbacks
from adjacent uses;

There is a green space between the food trailer location and the nearest property. As
well there are trees and shrubbery between the food trailer location and the nearest
neighbor. If more is needed, more can be proposed and provided, as necessary. It is
screened from the highway by the main building, it will be set back off of the side street
by a significant distance and is partially screened by the smaller building on the west
side of the property. 

(6)     Control of signs, if any;

There will be no additional signs for the food trailer, except what will be on the food
trailer in the way of the menu board. 

(7)     Control of exterior lighting with reference to glare, traffic safety, economic
effect, and compatibility and harmony with properties in the district;

All lighting related to the trailer will be compliant with the Dark Sky Ordinance. 

(8)     Required yards and open space;

Not applicable. 

(9)     Height and bulk of structures;

Not a permanent structure. Not applicable. 

(10)     Hours of operation;

Sunday through Thursday - 9:00 a.m. until 8:00 p.m.
Friday and Saturday - 9:00 a.m. until 10:00 p.m.

(11)     Exterior construction material, building design, and building facade treatment;

Not a permanent structure. Not applicable. 

(12)     Roadway adjustments, traffic-control devices or mechanisms, and access
restrictions to control traffic flow or divert traffic as may be needed to reduce or
eliminate development-generated traffic on neighborhood streets; and

Traffic flow will be no different than the normal operations of the business that has
existed in this building since the 1980's.

(13)     Provision for pedestrian access/amenities/areas;

93

Item 5.



Pedestrian access will be through the store itself which will have a door opening out
onto the courtyard in front of the food trailer. There will be picnic tables available for
people to sit if they choose. 

(14)     Noise;

The noise will be compliant with the City's noise ordinance; it will not be louder than
typical business operations. 

(15)     Odors; and

Food cooking is the only smell that will be different than typical. That smell is typical of
any restaurant. 

(16)     Dust.

Since the area where the food trailer is going is not going to be used for vehicular
ingress and egress the dust will be at a minimum since nothing will be getting
disturbed. 

Jon Thompson
J Thompson Professional Consulting
PO Box 172
Dripping Springs, Texas 78620
(512) 568-2184
jthompsonconsultingds@gmail.com

94

Item 5.

mailto:jthompsonconsultingds@gmail.com


 

Exhibit for CUP 2020-0008 Mobile Food Trailer 

OSSF Drainfield 
Vegetative Filter Strip 

 

Route for food trailer to be 
brought in on existing pavement 
and dirt area not on top of OSSF 
and VFS. 

Extent of 
drainfield 

95

Item 5.



96

Item 5.



Summary of Project  

CUP – Mobile Food Trailer 

1111 W Hwy 290, Dripping Springs Texas 

 

The property located at 1111 W Hwy 290 has been occupied and operated primarily over 
the last twenty-five yeas as Cowgirls and Lace by Reba Byrd. There was also a 
convenience store in operation on the western end of the building, known as Trailhead 
Center; however, that space was assumed by Mrs. Byrd as a part of her operation several 
years ago.  
 
The property is owned by George Scott, Dripping Springs, Ltd. The legal description of 
the property is Dripping Springs Heights Subdivision, Block B, Lots 1 & 16. Utilities are 
as follows: water is supplied by Dripping Springs Water Supply, electricity by Pedernales 
Electric, and wastewater is provided by an On-Site Sewage Facility.  
 
The history of the property has been retail since the 1980’s as a convenience store and 
retail shopping and was known as Redwood Center. It included the restaurant space that 
is now occupied by Railroad BBQ. The anchor was the convenience store on the west 
side of the building. The Hays County Precinct 4 Office was in the building behind the 
former convenience store that faces Bonnie Drive.  
 
The importance of understanding the history of the site is that it has been a 
continuously operated property with retail, convenience store, and restaurant for over 
30 years and closely coincides with the life of the incorporation of the City of Dripping 
Springs. It is a property that has evolved its businesses with the times. Once again, the 
site is undergoing a transformation and evolution as the years have progressed and 
times have changed. While Cowgirls and Lace remains in business it has reduced its 
lease space to 2500 square feet from its former space which took nearly the entire 
center.  
 
The restaurant space (3000 square feet) occupied by Railroad BBQ will remain what it 
is; while Cowgirls and Lace is the only tenant of the main building which is 
approximately 18,000 square feet. A proposed new tenant is Bykowski Tailor & Garb 
(though this business name is subject to change but for now, “Bykowski”) who has 
signed a lease for 6200 square feet. The business plan for Bykowski is to operate as a 
general merchandise retail store and restaurant. The mobile food trailer is part of the 
business plan for Bykowski. The mobile food trailer would constitute the food 
component of the restaurant.  
 
Since the placement of a mobile food trailer requires a Conditional Use Permit (CUP), 
the application for the CUP is being submitted for consideration and approval for one 
mobile food trailer. The mobile food units is intended for Bykowski as a part of his 
business operation.  

97

Item 5.



As has been expressed on occasion in the past by the City, it has been stated that the 
desire is to see that a mobile food trailer be a complementary use to a brick-and-mortar 
business. That is what is being proposed in this proposal, the mobile food trailer 
associated with Bykowski as a complementary use rather than a standalone mobile food 
trailer.  
 
The placement of the mobile food trailer will be located behind the existing building on 
the patio behind the former convenience store that is on the south side of the building. 
The mobile food trailer will be placed on existing impervious cover so as not to increase 
the impervious cover. Photos of a potential mobile food trailer is included with this 
Summary, along with photos of the potential interior of the store. A last exhibit is the 
survey of the property with the vertical improvements shown and the proposed location 
of the mobile food trailer.  
 
The following is a description of the business model as prepared by Chris Bykowski: 
 
Bykowski Tailor & Garb is a story of love, passion for lifestyle, and hard work. We are 
a combat veteran owned and operated lifestyle brand specializing in manufacturing 
handcrafted ready to wear and custom-tailored clothing and accessories for men and 
women ranging from hats down to boots and all in between, such as rustic casual 
wear and fancy tuxedos. Already a one of a kind shopping experience of ten years, it is 
time for the next chapter in raising the bar in an all-encompassing shopping 
experience to tantalize all of the senses for the whole family. The new location 
will feature clothing, hats, leather goods, footwear, apothecary, teas, books, oddities, 
curiosities, gifts, taxidermy, home decor, a bulk candy shop, and full food and bar 
service indoors and on the patio, games and small stage for curated low-key live music 
for an inviting vibe. A truly unique retail center with services available in every nook 
of the complex to experience 10am -9pm Monday through Saturday and a Sunday 
brunch. Starting off the remodel as the anchor to the small Trail Head plaza on 290 to 
entice like-minded Texas businesses to join us in the plaza with longtime locals 
Cowgirls & Lace and Railroad BBQ in its additional spaces available to further enrich 
the visitors experience. 
 
Being a Texas, local brand, we will support our fellow Texan's craft, goods, wares, 
services, and spirits that will be showcased throughout the complex. Flight tastings 
consist of Texas beer, wine, spirits and charcuterie. Unlike a "bar" we will have a 
curated selection of roughly 30 different local alcohol available instead of 150-200 
varieties because we are NOT a bar. We are a retail store/ design house/ clothing and 
accessories manufacturer/ lifestyle brand that will have a bar inside and a food trailer 
outside as an accessory to support the overall experience in the vain of Cabelas and 
Bass Pro Shop. It is not just a store to shop in, but an experience and a conversation! 
 
The nostalgic baroque aesthetic of a Victorian industrial merchant ship meets jovial 
1930's carnival will be Travel Channel worthy. A place to bring the whole family for 
the day or must stop for visitors passing through town on the way in and out of Austin 
and Wine Country.  
  

98

Item 5.



Businesses, especially retail are incorporating a food and alcohol business model to 
remain sustainable, interesting, and to keep people coming back. Low key live music 
or performances throughout the day indoors, sports on outdoor TVs while patrons 
enjoy a non-alcoholic or alcohol drink, grab a bite to eat on the patio or beautiful 
indoors, and shop unique goods will bring tax dollars, manufacturing, jobs, art, and 
culture to town and establish and landmark for our city of Dripping Springs, hill 
country, and Texas. www.BykowskiTailorGarb.com is the current business in the 
midst of an operation remodel to cope with the economic hardships and state of society 
we face as a community to focus on our next chapter. Being a sustainable and small 
business allows us to reevaluate and act accordingly - like we are now. This dream 
store has been a long time in the making and we look forward to sharing it with you 
and our home town of Dripping Springs.  
 
In summary, the business of Bykowski Tailor & Garb and the owner of the property, 
George Scott, Trailhead Market, Ltd. respectfully ask for the approval of the placement 
of one mobile food trailer on the property known as 1111 W. Hwy 290.  
 

99

Item 5.



100

Item 5.



101

Item 5.



102

Item 5.



103

Item 5.



104

Item 5.



105

Item 5.



106

Item 5.



107

Item 5.



108

Item 5.



109

Item 5.



110

Item 5.



111

Item 5.



112

Item 5.



113

Item 5.



114

Item 5.



From: Jon Thompson
To: Amanda Padilla
Subject: Fwd: Railroad BBQ letter
Date: Wednesday, August 12, 2020 11:04:44 PM

Amanda,
Please find the attached letter regarding the food trailer CUP for Chris Bykowski. A hard copy
should have been dropped off at City Hall. Please let me know if you have any questions. 
Jon 

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Jon Thompson <jthompsonconsultingds@gmail.com>
Date: Wed, Aug 12, 2020 at 10:02 PM
Subject: Railroad BBQ letter
To: <jthompsonconsultingds@gmail.com>

115

Item 5.

mailto:jthompsonconsultingds@gmail.com
mailto:apadilla@cityofdrippingsprings.com
mailto:jthompsonconsultingds@gmail.com
mailto:jthompsonconsultingds@gmail.com


-- 
Jon Thompson
J Thompson Professional Consulting
PO Box 172
Dripping Springs, Texas 78620

116

Item 5.



(512) 568-2184
jthompsonconsultingds@gmail.com

117

Item 5.

mailto:jthompsonconsultingds@gmail.com


From: Jon Thompson
To: Amanda Padilla
Subject: CUP (Bykowski)
Date: Thursday, August 13, 2020 6:11:51 PM

Amanda,
Here’s an additional exhibit with a bit more clarity on Chris’ suite. Thought this might be
helpful. 
Jon

118

Item 5.

mailto:jthompsonconsultingds@gmail.com
mailto:apadilla@cityofdrippingsprings.com


From: Jon Thompson
To: Amanda Padilla
Cc: Brandon Elliott; Alicia Lundy-Morse
Subject: Re: CUP 2020-0008 Mobile Food Vendor
Date: Thursday, August 13, 2020 11:55:57 AM
Attachments: image.png

Here's an exhibit roughly showing his suite. He has a front into the regular parking lot and will
be having access out into the courtyard. Does this work? 

Jon Thompson
J Thompson Professional Consulting
PO Box 172
Dripping Springs, Texas 78620
(512) 568-2184
jthompsonconsultingds@gmail.com

On Thu, Aug 13, 2020 at 10:28 AM Jon Thompson <jthompsonconsultingds@gmail.com>
wrote:

We'll be showing (installing) three additional parking spaces as demonstrated on the exhibit.
I've asked for Mr. Bykowski to mark the building as to where his suite is going to be. I
roughly know but want to make sure it's right. I'll be driving in a little bit heading to Fort
Collins but will send it to you as quickly as I get it or when I stop and can check my email.
Thanks. 

Jon Thompson
J Thompson Professional Consulting
PO Box 172

119

Item 5.

mailto:jthompsonconsultingds@gmail.com
mailto:apadilla@cityofdrippingsprings.com
mailto:belliott@cityofdrippingsprings.com
mailto:alundymorse@cityofdrippingsprings.com
mailto:jthompsonconsultingds@gmail.com
mailto:jthompsonconsultingds@gmail.com



 
 

 
Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting 

Planning Department Staff Report 

 
Planning and Zoning 
Commission Meeting: 

August 25, 2020 

Project Number:  ZA2020-0005 

Project Planner: Amanda Padilla, Senior Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: Sawyer Ranch 33, Tract 3   

Property Location:  This property is generally located Southwest of the intersection of Hwy 290 and Sawyer 

Ranch Road (R95789) 

Legal Description:  A0240 E B HARGRAVES SURVEY, ACRES 11.1044 

Applicant: Jon Thompson 

Property Owner: SAWYER T R & SAWYER-CLEVELAND PARTNERSHIP 

Request: A proposed zoning map amendment from Agriculture (AG) to General Retail (GR) for an 

approximately 11.1044-acre tract of land situated in the E B HARGRAVES SURVEY. 

Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the requested Zoning Change from Agriculture (AG) to General Retail (GR). 

 

 
 

120

Item 6.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

Overview 

 

The applicant is requesting a zoning change for an approximately 11.1044 acre tract of land generally located southwest 

of the intersection of US Hwy 290 and Sawyer Ranch Road (Parcel ID: R 95789). The subject property is currently within 

the City’s Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) and will be sent to the September 8, 2020 City Council Meeting for 

consideration to be annexed into the City Limits.   

 

The applicant would like to zone this parcel once annexed from Agriculture (AG) to General Retail (GR). The applicant 

did not indicate any specific uses but would like a similar zoning to the adjacent parcels to the east.  

 

The Zoning District General Retail is established to provide areas for retail facilities that are larger than those generally 

located in the Local Retail District, such as large grocery stores, bookstores, and the like. Areas zoned for General Retail 

should have convenient regional access via major thoroughfares, such as US Highway 290 or Ranch Road 12, and major 

collector streets are primary locational considerations. Hotel/motel uses, community scale retail, and bed-and-breakfasts 

are permitted within General Retail Districts. Office uses, commercial services, and industrial uses shall not be permitted. 

Unless indicated on the Use Chart. 

 

Permitted Uses: Those uses listed for the GR, General Retail District or any less intense commercial district and Single-

Family Four (SF-4), Single-Family Five (SF-5), and Multifamily Residential (MF) uses in Appendix E (Use Charts) as 

“P” or “C” are authorized uses permitted by right or conditionally permitted uses, respectively. 

 

 

 

 

Development Standards and Regulations for Zoning District 

Size of Lots  

Minimum Lot area Twenty thousand (20,000) square feet 

Minimum Lot Width One hundred feet (100') 

Minimum Lot Depth Minimum Lot Depth - One hundred fifty feet (150') 

Setback Requirements  

Minimum Front Yard Twenty-five feet (25'); all yards adjacent to a street shall 

be considered a front yard.  

Minimum Side Yard Twenty-five feet (25'); twenty-five feet (25') adjacent to 

a public street or residential lot. 

Interior Side Yards When retail uses are platted adjacent to other retail uses 

and integrated into an overall shopping center site, 

creating lease spaces abutting one another, no side yard 

is required provided it complies with the City's Building 

Code. 

Minimum Rear Yard Twenty-five feet (25') 

Adjacent to any Single-Family District 

Any retail use that is located adjacent to (and not across 

a right-of-way from) any single-family zoning district 

shall be set back from the applicable residential district 

property line by forty feet (40') 

Maximum Lot Coverage 
Sixty percent (60%) total, including main buildings and 

accessory buildings. 

Gross Floor 
The gross floor area for each building shall not exceed 

sixty thousand (60,000) square feet per building. 

Open Storage 

Open storage is limited to a maximum of five percent 

(5%) of the total lot area, shall not be located in front of 

or on top of the building, shall not be located facing any 

street, and must be screened in accordance with the 

provisions of Section 5. Open storage cannot be visible 

from any public street or adjacent property. 
121

Item 6.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

Height Regulations  

Main Building 
Maximum two (2) Stories, or forty feet (40’), whichever 

is less 

Accessory Building Maximum one (1) story, or twenty-five feet (25’) 

(g)     Outside Display: 

 

(1)     Outside display of merchandise and seasonal items, such as Christmas trees and pumpkins shall be 

limited to the following: 

 

(2)     Outside display areas shall not be placed or located more than thirty feet (30') from the main building. 

 

(3)     Outside display areas shall not occupy any of the parking spaces that are required by this Chapter for 

the primary use(s) of the property, except on a temporary basis only, which is a maximum of thirty (30) days 

per display and a maximum of two (2) displays per calendar year. 

 

(4)     Outside display areas shall not pose a safety or visibility hazard, nor impede public vehicular or 

pedestrian circulation, either on-site or off-site, in any way. 

 

(5)     Outside display areas shall not extend into public right-of-way or onto adjacent property. 

 

(6)     Outside display items shall be displayed in a neat, orderly manner, and the display area shall be 

maintained in a clean, litter-free manner. 

 

(h)     On-Site Dwellings: Recreational vehicles, manufactured homes, travel trailers or motor homes may not be 

used for on-site dwelling or nonresidential purposes. 

 

(i)     Temporary Facilities: There shall be no permanent use of temporary facilities or buildings. 

 

(j)     Other Regulations: Refer to Section 5, Development Standards & Use Regulations. 

 

 

Site Information 

 

Location:  

The Subject property is located Southwest of the intersection of US HWY 290 and Sawyer Ranch Road (R95789) 

 

Physical and Natural Features:  

The land is undeveloped and heavily wooded. 

 

Future Land Use and Zoning Designation:  

The subject property is proposed for annexation at the September 8, 2020 City Council meeting, and will be given the 

zoning designation of Agriculture (AG), with a proposed zoning map amendment to rezone the property to GR.  

 

The City’s Future Land Use Map does not show this property on the Map. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
122

Item 6.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

Surrounding Properties 

 

 
 

The current zoning and existing uses of the adjacent properties to the north, south, east, and west are outlined in the 

table below:  

 

Direction Zoning District Existing Use Future Land Use 

North ETJ 
Large Tract- Residential 

Lot, Gas Station 

Not Shown on the Future 

Land Use Map 

East 
Local Retail (LR) / Office 

(O), General Retail (GR) 

Dance Studio (Premiere 

Dance), Medical Offices, 

Private Preschool 

(Primrose Schools), Gas 

Station, Car Wash 

South ETJ 
Large Tract- Residential 

Lot 

West ETJ Undeveloped 

 

Approval Criteria for Zoning Amendment (Chapter 30 Zoning, Exhibit A, Sec 2.28.1 and 2.28.2) 

 

2.28.1 The City declares the enactment of these regulations governing the use and development of land, buildings, and 

structures as a measure necessary to the orderly development of the community. No change shall be made in these 

regulations or in the boundaries of the zoning districts except: 

 

a. To correct any error in the regulations or map; 
123

Item 6.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

b. To recognize changed conditions or circumstances in a particular locality; 

 

c. To recognize changes in technology, the style of living, or manner of conducting business; 

 

d.  To make changes in order to implement policies reflected within the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

2.28.2 In making a determination regarding a requested zoning change, the P&Z and the City Council shall consider the 

following factors: 

 

Factors Staff Comments 

1. whether the proposed change will be appropriate 

in the immediate area concerned; 

Staff believes the proposed change from Ag to GR 

is an appropriate change because it aligns with the 

adjacent properties and is suited for commercial 

development along US Hwy 290.  

2. their relationship to the general area and the 

City as a whole; 

Staff believes the uses proposed will fit in with the 

surrounding area. 

3. whether the proposed change is in accord with 

any existing or proposed plans for providing 

public schools, streets, water supply, sanitary 

sewers, and other utilities to the area; 

This property is not shown on any existing or 

proposed plans. 

4. the amount of undeveloped land currently 

classified for similar development in the vicinity 

and elsewhere in the City, and any special 

circumstances which may make a substantial 

part of such undeveloped land unavailable for 

development; 

This property will have no negative effect on other 

GR zoning districts.  

5. the recent rate at which land is being developed 

in the same zoning classification, particularly in 

the vicinity of the proposed change; 

General Retail uses have been placed on adjacent 

lots. The City of Dripping Springs is seeing an 

increase in commercial development.  

6. how other areas designated for similar 

development will be, or are unlikely to be, 

affected if the proposed amendment is 

approved; 

See comment 4. 

7. whether the proposed change treats the subject 

parcel of land in a manner which is significantly 

different from decisions made involving other, 

similarly situated parcels; and 

This property is being treated similarly to other 

Zoning changes. 

8. any other factors which will substantially affect 

the public health, safety, morals, or general 

welfare. 

Staff does not see this Zoning Change affecting the 

public health, safety, morals or general welfare.  

 

 

Summary, Recommendation, and Required Action 
 

Based on the uses permitted in the General Retail Zoning District, the adjacent land uses, the opportunity to attract more 

individuals to the area, and increase sales tax, Staff recommends approval of the requested Zoning Change from 

Agriculture (AG) to General Retail (GR).   

 

 

 

Planning and Zoning action: 

2.34.1     The P&Z shall hold a public hearing on a zoning an amendment to the Zoning Ordinance. After all 

public input has been received and the public hearing closed, the P&Z shall make its recommendations on the 
124

Item 6.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

proposed zoning request and concept plan, if submitted, stating its findings, its overall evaluation of the request, 

and its assessment regarding how the request relates to the City's Comprehensive Plan. The P&Z may, on its own 

motion or at the applicant's request, defer its decision recommendations until it has had an opportunity to consider 

other information or proposed modifications to the request which may have a direct bearing thereon. If the P&Z 

elects to postpone or defer its hearing on the request, such action shall specifically state the time period of the 

postponement by citing the meeting date whereon the request will reappear on the P&Z's agenda. 

 

2.34.2     When the P&Z is ready to act upon the zoning request, it may recommend: 

 

(a)     approval of the request as it was submitted by the applicant; 

 

(b)     approval of the request subject to certain conditions as in the case of a Planned Development 

District (PDD) or a Conditional Use Permit (CUP); or 

 

(c)     disapproval of the request. 

 

2.34.3     The P&Z's recommendation will be automatically forwarded to the City Council for a second public 

hearing thereon. 

 

Public Notification 

 

A legal notice advertising the public hearing was placed in the Dripping Springs Century-News, signs were posted on the-

site, notice was placed on the City Website, and all property owners within a 300-foot radius of the site were notified of 

the zoning map amendment. To date, no letters for or against the request have been received.  

 

Attachments 

 

Exhibit 1 – Zoning Map Amendment Application 

Exhibit 2 – Proposed Ordinance & Survey 

Exhibit 3 – General Retail Use Chart 

 

 

Recommended Action: Recommend approval of the requested zoning map amendment 

Alternatives/Options: Recommend denial of the zoning map amendment. 

Budget/Financial Impact: 
All fees have been paid, and the city would receive property taxes and development 

fees from the additional land upon annexation.  

Public Comments: None Received at this time. 

Enforcement Issues: N/A 

 

125

Item 6.



126

Item 6.



127

Item 6.



128

Item 6.



129

Item 6.



130

Item 6.



City of Dripping Springs 
Ordinance No.   

ZA2020-0005 
Page 1 of 5 

 

 

CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS 

ORDINANCE No.    

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS, 

TEXAS (“CITY”), REZONING ONE TRACT OF LAND, 

TOTALING APPROXIMATELY 11.1044 ACRES FROM 

AGRICULTURE DISTRICT (AG) TO GENERAL RETAIL 

DISTRICT (GR); AND PROVIDING FOR THE FOLLOWING: 

FINDINGS OF FACT; ENACTMENT; REPEALER; 

SEVERABILITY; EFFECTIVE DATE; AUTHORIZING THE 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO NOTE THE CHANGE ON THE 

OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY; PROPER NOTICE & 

MEETING. 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Dripping Springs (“City Council”) seeks to 

promote orderly land use and development within the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds to be reasonable and necessary the rezoning of the tract, 

described more fully in Attachment “A” and totaling approximately 11.1044 

acres, from Agriculture (AG) to General Retail District (GR); and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes changed conditions and circumstances in the 

particular location; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the zoning change is compatible with the surrounding 

area and with the City’s Zoning Ordinance and Comprehensive Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, after notice and hearing required by law, a public hearing was held before the 

Dripping Springs Planning and Zoning Commission on August 25, 2020 to 

consider the proposed amendment and the Planning and Zoning Commission 

recommended approval of the proposed change; and 

 

WHEREAS, after public hearing held by the City Council on September 8, 2020, the City 

Council voted to approve the recommendation of the Planning and Zoning 

Commission; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Section 51.001, the City has general 

authority to adopt an ordinance or police regulation that is for the good 

government, peace or order of the City and is necessary or proper for carrying out 

a power granted by law to the City; and 

131

Item 6.



City of Dripping Springs 
Ordinance No.   

ZA2020-0005 
Page 2 of 5 

 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 211 of the Texas Local Government Code, the City has the 

authority to zone and rezone property; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is necessary and proper for the good government, 

peace or order of the City of Dripping Springs to adopt this Ordinance. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Dripping Springs: 

 
1. FINDINGS OF FACT 

 

The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this Ordinance by reference as findings of fact as 

expressly set forth herein. 

 

2. ENACTMENT 

 
One tract of land totaling approximately 11.1044 acres, and described more fully in Attachment 

“A” and shown in Attachment “B”, is hereby rezoned from Agriculture (AG) to General Retail 

(GR). 

 
3. REPEALER 

 
All ordinances, resolutions, or parts thereof, that are in conflict or inconsistent with any provision 

of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions of this 

Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the matters regulated, herein. 

 
4. SEVERABILITY 

 

Should any of the clauses, sentences, paragraphs, sections or parts of this Ordinance be deemed 

invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of law or administrative agency with 

jurisdiction over the matter, such action shall not be construed to affect any other valid portion of 

this Ordinance. 

 
5. CHANGE ON ZONING MAP 

 

The City Administrator is hereby authorized to and shall promptly note the zoning change on the 

official Zoning Map of the City of Dripping Springs, Texas. 

 

6. EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
This Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon passage. 

 
7. PROPER NOTICE & MEETING 

 

It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed 

was open to the public, a public hearing was held, and that public notice of the time, place and 

132

Item 6.



City of Dripping Springs 
Ordinance No.   

ZA2020-0005 
Page 3 of 5 

 

 

purpose of said hearing and meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Texas 

Government Code, Chapter 551. 

 
PASSED & APPROVED this, the  day of  _ 2020, by a vote of  (ayes) 

to  (nays) to  (abstentions) of the City Council of Dripping Springs, Texas. 

 
CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS: 

 

by:   

Bill Foulds, Jr., Mayor 

 

 
ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Andrea Cunningham, City Secretary

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

133

Item 6.



ZA2020-0005 
Page 4 of 5 

City of Dripping Springs 
Ordinance No.   

 

 

Attachment “A” Description of Tract 

 

Rezoning one tract of land from Agriculture (AG) to General Retail District (GR) totaling approximately 

11.1044 acres of land: 

BEING A DESCRIPTION OF A TRACT OF LAND CONTAINING 11.1044 ACRES, (483,709 

SQUARE FEET), BEING OUT OF THE E.B. HARGRAVES SURVEY NO. 4, ABSTRACT NO. 

240, IN HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING A PORTION OF A REMAINDER OF A 2055.90 

ACRE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO THE SAWYER-CLEVELAND PARTNERSHIP, 

DESCRIBED IN VOLUME 317, PAGE 167 OF THE DEED RECORDS OF HAYS COUNTY, 

TEXAS, 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

134

Item 6.



ZA2020-0005 
Page 5 of 5 

City of Dripping Springs 
Ordinance No.   

 

 

Attachment “B”  

11.1044 Acres Tract 3 Metes and Bounds and Survey 
 

135

Item 6.



P:\00118\Metes & Bounds & Certifications\00118_Tract 3.docx 

 

Legal Description 

BEING A DESCRIPTION OF A TRACT OF LAND CONTAINING 11.1044 

ACRES, (483,709 SQUARE FEET), BEING OUT OF THE E.B. HARGRAVES 

SURVEY NO. 4, ABSTRACT NO. 240, IN HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING 

A PORTION OF A REMAINDER OF A 2055.90 ACRE TRACT OF LAND 

CONVEYED TO THE SAWYER-CLEVELAND PARTNERSHIP, DESCRIBED 

IN VOLUME 317, PAGE 167 OF THE DEED RECORDS OF HAYS COUNTY, 

TEXAS, (D.R.H.C.T.), SAID 11.1044 ACRE TRACT BEING MORE 

PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS (ALL 

BEARINGS ARE BASED ON THE TEXAS STATE PLANE COORDINATE 

SYSTEM, GRID NORTH, SOUTH CENTRAL ZONE (4204), NAD 83 (CORS), 

ALL DISTANCES WERE ADJUSTED TO SURFACE USING A COMBINED 

SCALE FACTOR OF 1.000081412828): 

 

BEGINNING at an iron rod with cap (cap not legible) found in the east line of Lot 1, Oetzel Subdivision 

recorded in Volume 5, Page 87-88 of the Plat Records of Hays County, Texas (P.R.H.C.T) and being the 

northwest corner of Lot 3A, Replat of Lot 3, Sawyer Ranch Estates recorded in Volume 9, Page 307-308 

(P.R.H.C.T.), and being the southwest corner of said remainder of called 2055.90 acres tract and the, said iron 

rod being the southwest corner and POINT OF BEGINNING hereof; 

 

THENCE, with the west line of said remainder of called 2055.90 acres tract and the east line of said Lot 1, 

N01°21’33”W, passing at 854.98 feet, an iron rod with “LCRA” cap found in the south line of a 30 foot wide 

waterline easement recorded in Volume 1686, Page 272 of the Official Public Records of Hays County, Texas 

(O.P.R.H.C.T.), in all a distance of 884.96 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with “Ward-5811” cap set in the south 

right-of-way line of U. S. Highway 290 West (right-of-way varies), and being the northeast corner of said Lot 1 

and the northwest corner of said remainder of called 2055.90 acres tract, and being the northwest corner hereof; 

 

THENCE, with the south right-of-way line of said U.S. Highway 290 West and the north line of said remainder 

of called 2055.90 acres tract, N88°40’07”E, a distance of 549.47 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with “Ward-5811” 

cap set for the northwest corner of Lot 1-D, Sawyer Ranch 33, Tract One recorded in Volume 16, Page 392-393 

(P.R.H.C.T.), and being the northeast corner of said remainder of called 2055.90 acres tract, and being the 

northeast corner hereof, from which a Texas Department or Transportation (TxDOT) Type I concrete monument 

found for a point of curvature in the south right-of-way line of said U.S. Highway 290 West and the north line of 

said Lot 1-D bears, N88°40’07”E, a distance of 94.26 feet; 

 

THENCE, with the east line of said remainder of called 2055.90 acres tract and with the line of said Lot 1-D, 

S00°41’20”E, passing at 379.60 feet the southwest corner of said Lot 1-D and the northwest corner of Lot 2-A1, 

Resubdivision of Lot 2-A of Sawyer Ranch 33, Tract Two recorded in Volume 19, Page 240-241 (P.R.H.C.T.), 

in all 892.56 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with “Ward-5811” cap set in the north line of said Lot 3A, and being the 

southwest corner of said Lot 2-A1, and being the southeast corner of said remainder of called 2055.90 acres 

tract, and being the southeast corner hereof; 

 

THENCE, with the common line of said Lot 3A and said remainder of called 2055.90 acres tract, 

S89°28’11”W, a distance of 539.08 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 11.1044 Acres, 

(483,709 Sq. Ft.) of land more or less. 

 

 

 

                                                8/24/2017     

Jason Ward, RPLS #5811  

4Ward Land Surveying, LLC 

 
PO Box 90876 

Austin, TX  78709 

512.554.3371 

jward@4wardls.com 
www.4wardls.com 

 

136

Item 6.

http://www.4wardls.com/


REPLAT OF LOT 3, SAWYER RANCH ESTATES
VOL. 9 PG. 307-308, P.R.H.C.T.

LOT 2-A1

LOT 1
OETZEL

SUBDIVISION
VOL. 5,

PG. 87-88
P.R.H.C.T.

E.B. HARGRAVES
 SURVEY NO. 4

ABSTRACT NO. 240

LOT 1-D

L
O

T
 1

-C
(P

O
N

D
)

SAWYER
RANCH 33

TRACT ONE
VOL. 16, PG.

392-393
P.R.H.C.T.

LOT 3A

TRACT 3
11.1044 ACRES

483,709 SQUARE FEET

REMAINDER OF
CALLED 2055.90 ACRES

DESCRIBED IN
VOLUME 317, PAGE 167

D.R.H.C.T.
OWNER:

SAWYER-CLEVELAND
PARTNERSHIP, LTD.
VOL. 2313, PG. 517

 D.R.H.C.T.



RESUBDIVISION OF
LOT 2-A OF

SAWYER RANCH 33
TRACT TWO

VOL. 19, PG. 240-241
P.R.H.C.T.

U.S.HIGHWAY 290 WEST
(R.O.W. WIDTH VARIES)

11.1044 ACRES
TRACT 3

City of Dripping Springs
Hays County, Texas

PO Box 90876, Austin Texas 78709

www.4Wardls.com   (512) 554-3371

A Limited Liability Company

137

Item 6.

AutoCAD SHX Text
{N89°48'35"E 349.61'}

AutoCAD SHX Text
{N00°08'24"E} ((N00°42'36"W))

AutoCAD SHX Text
"CAP NOT LEGIBLE"

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRID N: 13,982,945.38 GRID E: 2,283,556.57

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N84°36'34"E 312.80')

AutoCAD SHX Text
((N88°40'07"E 94.26'))

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S00°41'20"E 512.95')

AutoCAD SHX Text
((S00°41'20"E 379.60'))

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N89°28'11"E 452.73')

AutoCAD SHX Text
P:\00118\Dwg\00118_Tract 3.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
8/24/2017

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Reviewer:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Tech:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Survey Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Field Crew:

AutoCAD SHX Text
HT/DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 OF 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
CC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRB

AutoCAD SHX Text
00118

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 150'

AutoCAD SHX Text
JULY 2017

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE: 1" = 150'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
75

AutoCAD SHX Text
150

AutoCAD SHX Text
225

AutoCAD SHX Text
300



11.1044 ACRES
TRACT 3

City of Dripping Springs
Hays County, Texas

PO Box 90876, Austin Texas 78709

www.4Wardls.com   (512) 554-3371

A Limited Liability Company

138

Item 6.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
5811

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
JASON WARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
8/24/2017

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1) ALL BEARINGS ARE BASED ON THE TEXAS STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, GRID NORTH, SOUTH CENTRAL ZONE, (4204), NAD83, ALL DISTANCES WERE ADJUSTED TO SURFACE USING A COMBINED SCALE FACTOR OF 1.000081412828. 2) SEE ATTACHED METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING PROPERTY LINES

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING EASEMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" IRON ROD WITH "WARD" CAP SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOCUMENT NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF BEGINNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
VOLUME/PAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT RECORDS, HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED RECORDS, HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECORD INFORMATION PER VOL. 19 PG. 240-241 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOC. #

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VOL./PG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.R.H.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
O.P.R.H.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.R.H.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(......)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON ROD WITH "LCRA" CAP FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECORD INFORMATION PER VOL. 16, PG. 392-39316, PG. 392-393

AutoCAD SHX Text
((......))

AutoCAD SHX Text
TXDOT TYPE I CONCRETE MONUMENT FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECORD INFORMATION PER PLAT VOL. 5, PG. 87-88

AutoCAD SHX Text
{......}

AutoCAD SHX Text
P:\00118\Dwg\00118_Tract 3.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
8/24/2017

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Reviewer:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Tech:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Survey Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Field Crew:

AutoCAD SHX Text
HT/DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 OF 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
CC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRB

AutoCAD SHX Text
00118

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 150'

AutoCAD SHX Text
JULY 2017



APPENDIX E: ZONING USE REGULATIONS (CHARTS) 

E.1     Use Regulations (Charts) 

E.1.1.     The use of land or buildings shall be in accordance with those listed in the following Use 

Charts. No land or building shall hereafter be used and no building or structure shall be erected, altered, 

or converted other than for those uses specified in the zoning district in which it is located. 

(a)     The legend for interpreting the permitted uses in the Use Charts is: 

P Designates that the use is permitted in the zoning district indicated. 

    

  Designates that the use is prohibited in the zoning district indicated. 

    

C Designates that the use may be permitted in the zoning district only 

pursuant to issuance of a Conditional Use Permit. 

    

** Designates that the use is defined in this Chapter. 

(b)     Definitions: See Definitions in Section 1.6 of this Chapter for further description of uses. 

(c)     Uses Not Listed: If a use is not listed in the Use Charts, it is not allowed in any zoning district. 

(d)     Use Chart Organization: The following use categories are listed in the Use Charts: 

Agricultural Uses 

Residential Uses 

Office Uses 

Personal and Business Service Uses 

Retail Uses 

Transportation and Auto Service Uses 

Amusement and Recreational Service Uses 

Institutional/Governmental Uses 

Commercial and Wholesale Trade Uses 

Manufacturing and Light Industrial Uses 

E.1.2.     Standards for New and Unlisted Uses: Standards for new and unlisted uses may be interpreted 

by the City Administrator as those of a similar use. When a determination of the appropriate zoning 

district cannot be readily ascertained, the same criteria outlined below (in Subsection E.1.3) shall be 139

Item 6.



followed for determination of the appropriate district. The decision of the City Administrator or City 

Administrator’s designee may be appealed by the applicant according to the process for appeals for 

zoning change requests outlined herein. 

E.1.3.     Classification of New and Unlisted Uses: It is recognized that new types of land use will 

develop, and forms of land use not presently anticipated may seek to locate in the City of Dripping 

Springs. In order to provide for such changes and contingencies, a determination as to the appropriate 

classification of any new or unlisted form of land use in the Use Charts shall be made as follows: 

(a)     Initiation: A person, City department, the P&Z, or the City Council may propose zoning 

amendments to regulate new and previously unlisted uses. 

(b)     A person requesting the addition of a new or unlisted use, in writing, shall submit to the City 

Administrator all information necessary for the classification of the use including, but not limited to, the 

following: 

1.     The nature of the use and whether the use involves dwelling activity, sales, services, or 

processing; 

2.     The type of product sold or produced under the use; 

3.     Whether the use has enclosed or open storage and the amount and nature of the storage; 

4.     Anticipated employment typically anticipated with the use; 

5.     Transportation requirements; 

6.     The nature and time of occupancy and operation of the premises; 

7.     The off-street parking and loading requirements; 

8.     The amount of noise, odor, fumes, dust, toxic materials and vibration likely to be generated; and 

9.     The requirements for public utilities such as sanitary sewer and water and any special public 

services that may be required. 

(c)     Recommendation of Zoning Classification: The City Administrator shall refer the question 

concerning any new or unlisted use to the P&Z requesting a recommendation as to the zoning 

classification into which such use should be placed. The referral of the use interpretation question shall 

be accompanied by the statement of facts. 

(d)     Consideration by the P&Z: The P&Z shall consider the nature and described performance of the 

proposed use and its compatibility with the uses permitted in the various districts and determine the 

zoning district or districts within which such use is most similar and should be permitted. The P&Z shall 

submit its findings and recommendations to the City Council as to the classification proposed for any 

new or unlisted use. 

(e)     Consideration by the City Council: The City Council shall approve or disapprove the 

recommendation of the P&Z or make such determination concerning the classification of such use as is 140

Item 6.



determined appropriate based upon its findings. 

(Ordinance 1220.10 adopted 9/12/06) 

Use Chart 

Adopted February 17, 2015 

Permitted Uses “P” 

Conditional Uses “C" 

  Residential Uses Nonresidential Uses 

AGRICULTURE AG SF-1 SF-2 SF-4 SF-5 MF-1 O LR GR CS HO I GUI PR PP 

Bulk Grain and/or Feed 

Storage 
P                   X P       

Farms, General (Crops), 

Commercial 
P C C               X         

Greenhouse (Non-Retail) P P P P             P         

Livestock Sales P                   X         

Orchard/Crop 

Propagation 
P P C C C C C C C C P C       

Plant Nursery 

(Commercial) 
P               P P X C       

Small Scale Farm P C C     C C C C C P         

Stable, Commercial P C                 X         

Stables (Private, 

accessory use) 
P C C               P         

Stables (Private, principal 

use) 
P C                 X         

Garden (Non-Retail) P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 

Farm Animals (Exempt - 

FFA, 4H) 
P C C C C C C C C C P C       

Farm Animals (Non-

Exempt) 
P C C C C C C C C C P C       

 

(Ordinance 1220.99 adopted 2/17/15) 

  Residential Uses Nonresidential Uses 

RESIDENTIAL AG SF-1 SF-2 SF-4 SF-5 MF-1 O LR GR CS HO I GUI PR PP 

Accessory Bldg/Structure 

(Nonresidential) 
            P P P P P P       

Accessory Bldg/Structure 

(Residential) 
P P P P P P         P         

141

Item 6.



Accessory Dwelling P C C               P   P     

Caretaker’s/Guard 

Residence 
P P P               P         

Community or Group 

Home 
C C C C C           P         

Duplex/Two-Family       P P P P P P   P         

Garage Residential 

Conversion 
P P C C             P         

Garden Home/Townhome         P P P P P   P         

Home Occupation P P P P P P P P P   P         

HUD-Code Manufactured 

Home 
C     C C C         X         

Living Quarters on Site 

with a Business 
            P P P P P         

Multiple-Family 

Dwelling 
          P P P P   P         

Residential Loft             P P P   P         

Rooming/Boarding House           P   P     P         
 

Single-Family Dwelling, 

Detached 
P P P P P P         P         

Single-Family 

Industrialized Housing 
P P P P P P         P         

Swimming Pool, Private P P P P P P P P P   P         
 

(Ordinance 1220.99 adopted 2/17/15; Ordinance 2019-44 adopted 12/10/19) 

  Residential Uses Nonresidential Uses 

OFFICE AG SF-1 SF-2 SF-4 SF-5 MF-1 O LR GR CS HO I GUI PR PP 

Armed Services 

Recruiting Center 
            P P P P P         

Bank                   C X         

Check Cashing Service               P P P X         

Credit Agency             P P P P X         

Insurance Agency Offices             P P P P P         

Offices, 

General/Professional 
            P P P P P         

Office, Brokerage             P P P P P         142

Item 6.



Services 

Offices, Health Services             P P P P P         

Offices, Legal Services             P P P P P         

Offices, Parole/Probation                     X   P     

Offices, Professional             P P P P P         

Offices, Real Estate 

Office 
            P P P P P         

Saving & Loan                   C X         

Security Monitoring 

Company 
            P P P P X         

Telemarketing Center             P P P P X         
 

(Ordinance 1220.99 adopted 2/17/15) 

  Residential Uses Nonresidential Uses 

PERSONAL & 

BUSINESS SERVICES 
AG SF-1 SF-2 SF-4 SF-5 MF-1 O LR GR CS HO* I GUI PR PP 

All-Terrain Vehicle                 P P X         

Dealer (Sales Only)                     X         

Ambulance Service 

(Private) 
                  P X         

Antique Shop               P P P P         

Appliance Repair               P P P X         

Art Dealer/Gallery               P P P P         

Artisan’s Shop P             P P P P         

Artist Studio P P P P P P P P P P P         

Auto Sales (New & Used)                 C P X         

Auto Supply Store                 P P X         

Bakery or Confectionary 

(Retail) 
              P P P P         

Bar               C C C C         

Barbershop               P P P P         

Beauty Shop               P P P P         

Bed & Breakfast Inn or C C C         P P P P         
143

Item 6.



Facility 

Bicycle Sales and Repair               P P P P         

Book Store               P P P P         

Building Materials Sales                 C P X         
 

Cabinet/Counter/ 

Woodworking Shop 
(Custom) Retail 

                  C X P       

Cabinet/Counter/ 

Woodworking Shop 

(Manufacturing) 

Wholesale 

                    X P       

Cafeteria             C C P P P         

Communication 

Equipment Repair 
                  P X         

Computer Sales               P P P P         

Consignment Shop               P P P P         

Convenience Store (With 

Gas Sales) 
                P P X         

Convenience Store 

(Without Gas Sales) 
              C P P P         

Cooking School               P P P P         

Dance/Drama/Music 

Studio or School 
              P P P P         

Department Store                 P P P         

Drapery, Blind 

Upholstery Store 
              P P P P         

Exterminator Services                   P X         

Financial Services               P P P P         

Florist Shop               P P P P         

Food or Grocery Store 

(General) 
                P P P         

Food or Grocery Store 

(Limited) 
              P P P P         

Funeral Home or 

Mortuary 
                  P X         

Furniture Store (New 

and/or Used) 
              P P P X         

144

Item 6.



Garden Shop (Inside 

Storage) 
              P P P P         

General or Community 

Retail Store 
                P P P         

Gravestone/Tombstone 

Sales 
                  P X         

Hardware Store               P P P P         

Home Improvement 

Center 
                P P X         

Laundry/Dry Cleaning                   P X         

Lawnmower Sales 

&Repair 
                P P X         

Live-in Security Quarters             P P P P P         

Locksmith               P P P X         

Major Appliance Sales                 P P X         

Market (Public)               P P P P         

Mini-Warehouse - Self 

Storage 
                  C X         

 

Mobile food vendor - 10 

days or less 
            P P P P P P P P P 

Mobile food vendor - 

longer than 10 days 
            C C C C C C C     

Mobile food vendor court             C C C C C C C     

Motorcycle Dealer (Sales, 

Repair) 
                P P X         

Motel or Hotel                 P P P         

Needlework Shop               P P P P         

Pet Shop/Supplies               P P P P         

Pharmacy               P P P P         

Photocopying/Duplicating               P P P P         

Photography Studio               P P P P         

Plant Nursery (Retail 

Sales, Outdoors) 
                P P X         

Radio or Television 

Studio 
                P P X         

145

Item 6.



Recycling Center                   C X P       

Restaurant (No Drive-

Through Service) 
              P P P P         

Restaurant (With Drive-

Through) 
                P P X         

Security Systems 

Installation Company 
                C P X         

Sexually Oriented 

Business 
                  C X C       

Shoe Repair               P P P P         

Studio, Tattoo or Body 

Piercing 
              C C C P         

Tailor Shop               P P P P         

Tool & Machinery Rental 

(Indoor Storage) 
              P P P X         

Tool & Machinery Rental 

(Outdoor Storage) 
                  P X         

Travel Agency             P P P P P         

Temporary Outdoor 

Sales/Promotion 
            C P P P P         

Upholstery Shop                 P P P         

Used Merchandise/ 

Furniture 
              P P P P         

Vacuum Cleaner Sales & 

Repair 
              P P P X         

Veterinarian Clinic 

(Indoor Kennels) 
              P P P P         

Woodworking Shop 

(Ornamental, Handmade 
              P P P P         

 

* Permitted in HO District per requirements of Chapter 30, Article 30.05: Mobile Food Vendors. 

(Ordinance 1220.99 adopted 2/17/15; Ordinance 1220.149 adopted 11/14/17; Ordinance 2018-09 adopted 4/10/18) 

  Residential Uses Nonresidential Uses 

TRANSPORTATION & 

AUTO SERVICES 
AG SF-1 SF-2 SF-4 SF-5 MF-1 O LR GR CS HO I GUI PR PP 

Antique Vehicle 

Restoration 
                  P X         

Auto Body Repair                   P X         

Auto Financing &               P P P X         146

Item 6.



Leasing 

Auto Muffler Shop                   P X         

Auto Paint Shop                   P X         
 

Auto Tire Sales & Repair                 P P X         

Auto Upholstery Shop                   P X         

Auto Washing Facility, 

Attended 
                P P X         

Auto Washing Facility, 

Unattended 
                P P X         

Auto Wrecker Service                   P X         

Automobile Repair, 

Major 
                  P X         

Automobile Repair, 

Minor 
              C C P X         

Heliport                       P P     

Helistop                       P P     

Limousine/Taxi Service                   P X         

Oil Change & Inspection                 P P X         

Parking Lot, Commercial                   C           

Parking Structure, 

Commercial 
            C C C P P         

Tire Dealer, Indoor 

Storage 
              P P P X         

 

(Ordinance 1220.99 adopted 2/17/15; Ordinance 1220.140, att. B, adopted 4/11/17; Ordinance 1220.151 adopted 12/12/17) 

  Residential Uses Nonresidential Uses 

AMUSEMENT/ 

RECREATION 
AG SF-1 SF-2 SF-4 SF-5 MF-1 O LR GR CS HO I GUI PR PP 

Amusement Arcade (Four 

or more devices) 
                P P P         

Amusement Services 

(Indoor) 
                P P P         

Amusement Services 

(Outdoor) 
                P P X         

Billiard/Pool Facility                 P P P         

Bingo Hall                 P P P     P   
147

Item 6.



Bowling Center                 P P P     P   

Broadcast Station (With 

Tower) 
                    X P       

Country Club (Private)                 P   X         

Dance Hall                 P P P     P   

Day Camp for Children C C         C   P P           

Civic/Conference Center                     P   P     

Dinner Theater                 P P P         

Driving Range                           P   

Fairgrounds/Exhibition 

Area 
C                         P   

Gaming Club (private)               C C C           

Golf Course (Miniature)                 P P       P   

Golf Course (Public, 

Private) 
C               P P       P   

Health Club             C P P P P     P   

Motion-Picture Studio, 

Commercial 
                  P   P       

Motion-Picture Theater                 P P P         

Museum               P P P P         

Park accessory uses                             P 

Park and/or Playground P P P P P P P P P P P       P 

Psychic Reading Services               P P P P         
 

Rodeo Grounds C                 C   C       

Skating Rink                   P       P   

Tennis Court P P P P P P         P     P   

Theater (Stage)                 P P P     P   

Video Rentals/Sales               P P P P         
 

(Ordinance 1220.99 adopted 2/17/15; Ordinance 2020-01 adopted 1/14/20) 

  Residential Uses Nonresidential Uses 

INSTITUTIONAL/ 

GOVERNMENT 
AG SF-1 SF-2 SF-4 SF-5 MF-1 O LR GR CS HO I GUI PR PP 

148

Item 6.



Assisted Living Facility           C   C C C P         

Broadcast Tower 

(Commercial) 
                      C       

Cemetery or Mausoleum C                       P     

Child Day-Care Facility C C C C C C C P P P P         

Church, Religious 

Assembly 
P P P P P P P P P P P   P     

Civic Club             P P P P P         

Community Center 

(Municipal) 
                    P   P     

Electrical Generating 

Plant 
                      P P     

Electrical Substation                       P P     

Emergency Care Clinic                 P P           

Fire Station P P P P P P P P P P     P     

Fraternal Lodge or Union             P P P P P         

Government Building 

(Mun, St, Fed) 
                  P P   P     

Group Day-Care Home C C C C C C C P P P           

Medical Clinic or Office             P P P P P         

Wireless 

Communications Tower 
C C C     C C C C C   C       

Heliport                       P       

Home for the Aged, 

Residential 
C C C C C C C C P P P         

Hospice               C P P P         

Hospital (Acute Care, 

General) 
            C C P P           

Library             P P P P P   P     

Maternity Home             C C P P P         

Nursing/Convalescent 

Home 
            C C P P           

Orphanage           C C C P P P         

Philanthropic 

Organization 
            P P P P P         

149

Item 6.



Post Office P P P P P P P P P P P   P     

Radio, Television, 

Microwave Tower 
                C C   C       

School, K Through 12 

(public or private) 
P P P P P P P P P P P   P     

Sewage Pumping Station C C C C C C C C C C P P P     

Telephone Switching/ 

Exchange Bldg. 
            C C C P P   P     

 

Wastewater Treatment 

Plant 
C C C C C C C C C C   C P     

Water Supply (Elevated 

Storage Tank) 
C C C C C C C C C C P C P     

Water Supply Facility 

(Private) 
P P P P P P   C C C   C P     

 

  

  Residential Uses Nonresidential Uses 

COMM. & 

WHOLESALE TRADE 
AG SF-1 SF-2 SF-4 SF-5 MF-1 O LR GR CS HO I GUI PR PP 

Book Bindery                   P P         

Feed & Grain Store                 P P           

Furniture Manufacture                       P       

Heating & Air-

Conditioning 
Sales/Service 

                P P           

Pawnshop                 C C           

Propane Sales (Retail)                   P           

Taxidermist                   P           

Transfer Station/Refuse 

Pickup 
                      P       

Veterinarian (Outdoor 

Kennels or Pens) 
C                 P           

Warehouse/Office                   C   P       

Welding Shop                   C   P       
 

  

  Residential Uses Nonresidential Uses 

LIGHT AG SF-1 SF-2 SF-4 SF-5 MF-1 O LR GR CS HO I GUI PR PP 150

Item 6.



INDUSTRIAL/MFG. 

Contractor’s Office (No 

Outside Storage. 
              P P P P P       

Contractor’s Office (with 

Outside Storage) 
                  C   P       

Contractor’s Temporary 

On-site Office 
C C C C C C C C C C P C       

Electronic Assembly                   C   P       

Engine Repair or 

Manufacture 
                      P       

Laboratory Equipment 

Manufacture 
                      P       

Machine Shop                       P       

Maintenance & Repair 

Services for Bldgs. 
                  P           

Open Storage/Outside 

Storage 
C                 C   P       

Plumbing Shop                 P P           

Research Lab 

(Nonhazardous) 
                C C   P       

Sand/Gravel/Stone Sales 

or Storage 
C                 C   P       

 

Sand/Gravel Quarrying                       C       

Sign Manufacturing                   C P P       

Stone/Clay/Glass 

Manufacturing 
                  C   P       

 

(Ordinance 1220.99 adopted 2/17/15) 

151

Item 6.



 
 

 
Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting 

Planning Department Staff Report 

 
Planning and Zoning 
Commission Meeting: 

August 25, 2020 

Project Number:  ZA2020-0006 

Project Planner: Amanda Padilla, Senior Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: Haydon Tracts 1, 2, 3 

Property Location:  This property is generally located northwest of the intersection of Bluff Street and Hays Street, 

within the Hays Street Historic District. 

Legal Description:  W.T. Chapman # 5, Block 1,2,3,4,7,8 & 0.68 acre of spring street 

Applicant: Jon Thompson 

Property Owner: Charles Haydon 

Request: 

A proposed zoning map amendment for three (3) tracts generally located northwest of the 

intersection of Bluff Street and Hays Street, within the Hays Street Historic District. Tracts 1 

and 2 are requesting to rezone from Two-Family Residential - Duplex (SF4) to Single-Family 

Attached Residential - Town Home (SF5). Tract 3 is requesting to rezone from SF-4 to 

General Retail (GR). 

Staff Recommendation: 

Staff recommends approval of the requested Zoning Change for Tract 3 from Two-

Family Residential - Duplex (SF-4) to General Retail (GR). Staff recommends 

postponing the rezoning for Tracts 1 and 2 with renotice (based on applicants request). 

 
152

Item 7.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

Overview 

 

The applicant is requesting a zoning map amendment change for three (3) tracts generally located northwest of the 

intersection of Bluff Street and Hays Street, within the Hays Street Historic District. Tracts 1 and 2 are requesting to 

rezone from Two-Family Residential - Duplex (SF4) to Single-Family Attached Residential - Town Home (SF5). Tract 3 

is requesting to rezone from SF-4 to General Retail (GR). The applicant has requested to postpone Tracts 1 and 2 to allow 

for a Conditional Overlay to be placed on the property which requires additional notice. Tract 3 is requesting to rezone to 

General Retail (GR) to allow for a Bed and Breakfast.  

 

 

 
 

 

The zoning district General Retail is established to provide areas for retail facilities that are larger than those generally 

located in the Local Retail District, such as large grocery stores, bookstores, and the like. Areas zoned for General Retail 

should have convenient regional access via major thoroughfares, such as US Highway 290 or Ranch Road 12, and major 

collector streets are primary locational considerations. Hotel/motel uses, community scale retail, and bed-and-breakfasts 

are permitted within General Retail Districts.  

 

Permitted Uses: Those uses listed for the GR, General Retail District or any less intense commercial district and Single-

Family Four (SF-4), Single-Family Five (SF-5), and Multifamily Residential (MF) uses in Appendix E (Use Charts) as 

“P” or “C” are authorized uses permitted by right or conditionally permitted uses, respectively. 

 

All three (3) tracts are within the Hays Street Historic District. When a lot is within the historic district, they shall comply 

with the Historic District Overlay as well as the General Retail Use Chart. Certain uses could be prohibited in the Historic 

District but allowed in General Retail. For example, Check Cashing Service, Credit Agencies, and Convenience store with 

gas sales are allowed in a General Retail District but are not allowed within the Historic District, so this property would 

be prohibited from allowing those uses. If a use requires a CUP within General Retail and not in the Historic District (or 

vice-versa) the CUP would be required because the City would implement whichever is the most restrictive requirement, 

this would also apply if a use is prohibited in one district but not the other.   

153

Item 7.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

Development Standards and Regulations for General Retail Zoning District and Historic District 

 General Retail Hays Historic District  

Size of Lots   

Minimum Lot area Twenty thousand (20,000) square feet  

Minimum Lot Width One hundred feet (100')  

Minimum Lot Depth Minimum Lot Depth - One hundred 

fifty feet (150') 

 

Setback Requirements   

Minimum Front Yard Twenty-five feet (25'); all yards 

adjacent to a street shall be considered 

a front yard.  

Ten feet (10’)  

Minimum Side Yard Twenty-five feet (25'); twenty-five 

feet (25') adjacent to a public street or 

residential lot. 

Five feet (5’) 

Interior Side Yards When retail uses are platted adjacent 

to other retail uses and integrated into 

an overall shopping center site, 

creating lease spaces abutting one 

another, no side yard is required 

provided it complies with the City's 

Building Code. 

Five feet (5’) 

Minimum Rear Yard Twenty-five feet (25') Ten feet (10’) 

Adjacent to any Single-Family District 

Any retail use that is located adjacent 

to (and not across a right-of-way 

from) any single-family zoning 

district shall be set back from the 

applicable residential district property 

line by forty feet (40') 

 

Maximum Lot Coverage 

Sixty percent (60%) total, including 

main buildings and accessory 

buildings. 

 

Gross Floor 

The gross floor area for each building 

shall not exceed sixty thousand 

(60,000) square feet per building. 

 

Open Storage 

Open storage is limited to a maximum 

of five percent (5%) of the total lot 

area, shall not be located in front of or 

on top of the building, shall not be 

located facing any street, and must be 

screened in accordance with the 

provisions of Section 5. Open storage 

cannot be visible from any public 

street or adjacent property. 

 

Height Regulations   

Main Building 
Maximum two (2) Stories, or forty 

feet (40’), whichever is less 

Maximum two (2) stories 

Accessory Building 
Maximum one (1) story, or twenty-

five feet (25’) 

 

(g)     Outside Display: 

 

(1)     Outside display of merchandise and seasonal items, such as Christmas trees and pumpkins shall be 

limited to the following: 

 

154

Item 7.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

(2)     Outside display areas shall not be placed or located more than thirty feet (30') from the main building. 

 

(3)     Outside display areas shall not occupy any of the parking spaces that are required by this Chapter for 

the primary use(s) of the property, except on a temporary basis only, which is a maximum of thirty (30) days 

per display and a maximum of two (2) displays per calendar year. 

 

(4)     Outside display areas shall not pose a safety or visibility hazard, nor impede public vehicular or 

pedestrian circulation, either on-site or off-site, in any way. 

 

(5)     Outside display areas shall not extend into public right-of-way or onto adjacent property. 

 

(6)     Outside display items shall be displayed in a neat, orderly manner, and the display area shall be 

maintained in a clean, litter-free manner. 

 

(h)     On-Site Dwellings: Recreational vehicles, manufactured homes, travel trailers or motor homes may not be 

used for on-site dwelling or nonresidential purposes. 

 

(i)     Temporary Facilities: There shall be no permanent use of temporary facilities or buildings. 

 

(j)     Other Regulations: Refer to Section 5, Development Standards & Use Regulations. 

 

 

Site Information 

 

Location:  

The Subject property is located northwest of the intersection of Bluff Street and Hays Street, within the Hays Street 

Historic District. 

 

Physical and Natural Features:  

The land has a Single-Family Residential Home with a Garage. 

 

 
155

Item 7.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

Future Land Use and Zoning Designation:  

 

The City’s Future Land Use Map does not show this property on the Map. The property is within the Hays Street Historic 

District and shall comply with the Historic District Overlay use chart. 

 

Surrounding Properties 

 

 
 

The current zoning and existing uses of the adjacent properties to the north, south, east, and west are outlined in the 

table below:  

 

Direction Zoning District Existing Use Future Land Use 

North 
Government, Utility, Institutional 

(GUI), Commercial Services (CS) 

City Hall, Office & Retail 

(Spring Bluff Center)  

Not Shown on the Future 

Land Use Map 

East Commercial Services (CS) 

Restaurant (Rolling in 

Thyme and Dough)(Creek 

Road Café) 

South 

Single-Family Attached 

Residential District (SF-5) Garden 

Home 

Garden Homes 

West Local Retail (LR) 
Commercial Development/ 

Vacant Building 

 

 

 
156

Item 7.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

Approval Criteria for Zoning Amendment (Chapter 30 Zoning, Exhibit A, Sec 2.28.1 and 2.28.2) 

2.28.1 The City declares the enactment of these regulations governing the use and development of land, buildings, and 

structures as a measure necessary to the orderly development of the community. No change shall be made in these 

regulations or in the boundaries of the zoning districts except: 

 

a. To correct any error in the regulations or map; 

 

b. To recognize changed conditions or circumstances in a particular locality; 

 

c. To recognize changes in technology, the style of living, or manner of conducting business; 

 

d.  To make changes in order to implement policies reflected within the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

2.28.2 In making a determination regarding a requested zoning change, the P&Z and the City Council shall consider the 

following factors: 

Factors Staff Comments 

1. whether the proposed change will be appropriate 

in the immediate area concerned; 

Staff believes the proposed change from SF-4 to GR 

is an appropriate change for the area because it 

complements the adjacent commercial properties 

and the use is suitable along US Hwy 290. It also 

fits in with the surrounding Residential lots. The 

property adjacent to this property (to the south) is 

used as a short-term rental which is a similar use to 

a Bed and Breakfast.  

2. their relationship to the general area and the 

City as a whole; 

The use proposed will fit in with the surrounding 

area. A bed and breakfast suits Dripping Springs 

community and can benefit tourism/wedding- 

related businesses in the Community, which is a 

goal of the Comprehensive Plan.  

 

3. whether the proposed change is in accord with 

any existing or proposed plans for providing 

public schools, streets, water supply, sanitary 

sewers, and other utilities to the area; 

This property is not shown on any existing or 

proposed plans for public schools, streets, water 

supply, sanitary sewers, and other utilities to the 

area. 

4. the amount of undeveloped land currently 

classified for similar development in the vicinity 

and elsewhere in the City, and any special 

circumstances which may make a substantial 

part of such undeveloped land unavailable for 

development; 

This property will have no negative effect on other 

GR zoning districts or surrounding commercial 

properties. It could promote the occupancy of 

commercial uses on the adjacent Local Retail lots to 

the west.   

5. the recent rate at which land is being developed 

in the same zoning classification, particularly in 

the vicinity of the proposed change; 

General Retail uses have been placed on adjacent 

lots across the creek. The City of Dripping Springs 

is seeing an increase in commercial development.  

6. how other areas designated for similar 

development will be, or are unlikely to be, 

affected if the proposed amendment is 

approved; 

 The use intended, Bed and Breakfast, would benefit 

the surrounding commercial properties. Patrons of 

the Bed and Breakfast could walk over to the 

surrounding restaurants and retail. 

7. whether the proposed change treats the subject 

parcel of land in a manner which is significantly 

different from decisions made involving other, 

similarly situated parcels; and 

This property is being treated similarly to other 

Zoning changes. 

8. any other factors which will substantially affect 

the public health, safety, morals, or general 

welfare. 

Staff does not see this Zoning Change affecting the 

public health, safety, morals or general welfare.  

157

Item 7.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

Summary, Recommendation, and Required Action 
 

Based on the uses permitted in the General Retail Zoning District and Historic Overlay District, the adjacent land uses, the 

opportunity to attract more individuals to the area, and the increase in Hotel Occupancy Tax, Staff recommends 

approval of the requested Zoning Change for Tract 3 to Two-Family Residential - Duplex (SF-4) to General Retail 

(GR). Staff recommends postponing the rezoning for Tracts 1 and 2 to the next Planning and Zoning Commission 

meeting on September 22, 2020. 
 

 

Planning and Zoning action: 

2.34.1     The P&Z shall hold a public hearing on a zoning an amendment to the Zoning Ordinance. After all 

public input has been received and the public hearing closed, the P&Z shall make its recommendations on the 

proposed zoning request and concept plan, if submitted, stating its findings, its overall evaluation of the request, 

and its assessment regarding how the request relates to the City's Comprehensive Plan. The P&Z may, on its own 

motion or at the applicant's request, defer its decision recommendations until it has had an opportunity to consider 

other information or proposed modifications to the request which may have a direct bearing thereon. If the P&Z 

elects to postpone or defer its hearing on the request, such action shall specifically state the time period of the 

postponement by citing the meeting date whereon the request will reappear on the P&Z's agenda. 

 

2.34.2     When the P&Z is ready to act upon the zoning request, it may recommend: 

 

(a)     approval of the request as it was submitted by the applicant; 

 

(b)     approval of the request subject to certain conditions as in the case of a Planned Development 

District (PDD) or a Conditional Use Permit (CUP); or 

 

(c)     disapproval of the request. 

 

2.34.3     The P&Z's recommendation will be automatically forwarded to the City Council for a second public 

hearing thereon. 

 

Public Notification 

 

A legal notice advertising the public hearing was placed in the Dripping Springs Century-News, signs were posted on the-

site, notice was placed on the City Website, and all property owners within a 300-foot radius of the site were notified of 

the zoning map amendment. To date, no letters for or against the request have been received.  

 

Attachments 

 

Exhibit 1 – Zoning Map Amendment Application 

Exhibit 2 – Proposed Ordinance & Survey 

Exhibit 3 – General Retail Use / Historic Overlay Chart 

Exhibit 4 - Implementation Standards Historic Districts 

 

Recommended Action: 
Recommend approval of the requested zoning map amendment for Tract 3, Postpone 

Tracts 1 and 2 Zoning Amendment 

Alternatives/Options: Recommend denial of the zoning map amendment. 

Budget/Financial Impact: All fees have been paid, and the city would receive Hotel occupancy taxes. 

Public Comments: None Received at this time. 

158

Item 7.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

Enforcement Issues: N/A 

Comprehensive Plan Goal: Support tourism / wedding related businesses 

 

159

Item 7.



 

City of Dripping Springs    ZA2020-0006 

Ordinance No _______   Page 1 of 6 

CITY OF DRIPPING 

SPRINGS ORDINANCE 

No.    

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF DRIPPING 

SPRINGS, TEXAS (“CITY”), REZONING ONE TRACT 

OF LAND, TOTALING APPROXIMATELY 0.519 

ACRES FROM TWO-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL - 

DUPLEX (SF-4) TO GENERAL RETAIL DISTRICT (GR); 

AND PROVIDING FOR THE FOLLOWING: FINDINGS 

OF FACT; ENACTMENT; REPEALER; SEVERABILITY; 

EFFECTIVE DATE; AUTHORIZING THE CITY 

ADMINISTRATOR TO NOTE THE CHANGE ON THE 

OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY; PROPER 

NOTICE & MEETING. 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Dripping Springs (“City Council”) seeks to 

promote orderly land use and development within the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds to be reasonable and necessary the rezoning of the 

tract, described more fully in Attachment “A” and totaling approximately 

0.519 acres, from Two-Family Residential - Duplex (SF-4) to General 

Retail District (GR); and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes changed conditions and circumstances in the 

particular location; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the zoning change is compatible with the 

surrounding area and with the City’s Zoning Ordinance and 

Comprehensive Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, after notice and hearing required by law, a public hearing was held before 

the Dripping Springs Planning and Zoning Commission on August 25, 

2020 to consider the proposed amendment and the Planning and Zoning 

Commission recommended approval of the proposed change; and 

 

WHEREAS, after public hearing held by the City Council on September 8, 2020, the 

City Council voted to approve the recommendation of the Planning and 

Zoning Commission; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Section 51.001, the City has 

general authority to adopt an ordinance or police regulation that is for the 

good government, peace or order of the City and is necessary or proper for 

carrying out a power granted by law to the City; and 

160

Item 7.



 

City of Dripping Springs    ZA2020-0006 

Ordinance No _______   Page 2 of 6 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 211 of the Texas Local Government Code, the City has 

the authority to zone and rezone property; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is necessary and proper for the good 

government, peace or order of the City of Dripping Springs to adopt this 

Ordinance. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Dripping Springs: 

 
1. FINDINGS OF FACT 

 

The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this Ordinance by reference as findings of 

fact as expressly set forth herein. 

 

2. ENACTMENT 

 
One tract of land totaling approximately 0.519 acres and described more fully in 

Attachment “A” and shown in Attachment “B”, is hereby rezoned from Two-Family 

Residential - Duplex (SF-4) to General Retail (GR). 

 
3. REPEALER 

 
All ordinances, resolutions, or parts thereof, that are in conflict or inconsistent with any 

provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the 

provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the matters regulated, 

herein. 

 
4. SEVERABILITY 

 

Should any of the clauses, sentences, paragraphs, sections or parts of this Ordinance be 

deemed invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of law or administrative 

agency with jurisdiction over the matter, such action shall not be construed to affect any 

other valid portion of this Ordinance. 

 
5. CHANGE ON ZONING MAP 

 

The City Administrator is hereby authorized to and shall promptly note the zoning change on 

the official Zoning Map of the City of Dripping Springs, Texas. 

 

6. EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
This Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon passage. 

 
7. PROPER NOTICE & MEETING 

 

161

Item 7.



 

City of Dripping Springs    ZA2020-0006 

Ordinance No _______   Page 3 of 6 

It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance was 

passed was open to the public, a public hearing was held, and that public notice of the 

time, place and 

162

Item 7.



 

City of Dripping Springs    ZA2020-0006 

Ordinance No _______   Page 4 of 6 

purpose of said hearing and meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, 

Texas Government Code, Chapter 551. 

 
PASSED & APPROVED this, the  day of  _ 2020, by a vote of 

 (ayes) to  (nays) to  (abstentions) of the City Council of 

Dripping Springs, Texas. 

 
CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS: 

 

by:   Bill Foulds, Jr., Mayor 

 

 
ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Andrea Cunningham, City Secretary

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

163

Item 7.



 

City of Dripping Springs    ZA2020-0006 

Ordinance No _______   Page 5 of 6 

 

Attachment “A” Description of Tract 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

164

Item 7.



 

City of Dripping Springs    ZA2020-0006 

Ordinance No _______   Page 6 of 6 

 

Attachment “B”  

0.519 Acres Tract 3 Survey 
 

165

Item 7.



Attachment A

166

Item 7.



167

Item 7.



168

Item 7.



169

Item 7.



170

Item 7.



Attachment B

171

Item 7.



APPENDIX E: ZONING USE REGULATIONS (CHARTS) 

Use Chart 

Adopted February 17, 2015 

Permitted Uses “P” 

Conditional Uses “C" 

  Residential Uses Nonresidential Uses 

AGRICULTURE AG SF-1 SF-2 SF-4 SF-5 MF-1 O LR GR CS HO I GUI PR PP 

Bulk Grain and/or Feed 

Storage 
P                   X P       

Farms, General (Crops), 

Commercial 
P C C               X         

Greenhouse (Non-Retail) P P P P             P         

Livestock Sales P                   X         

Orchard/Crop 

Propagation 
P P C C C C C C C C P C       

Plant Nursery 

(Commercial) 
P               P P X C       

Small Scale Farm P C C     C C C C C P         

Stable, Commercial P C                 X         

Stables (Private, 

accessory use) 
P C C               P         

Stables (Private, principal 

use) 
P C                 X         

Garden (Non-Retail) P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 

Farm Animals (Exempt - 

FFA, 4H) 
P C C C C C C C C C P C       

Farm Animals (Non-

Exempt) 
P C C C C C C C C C P C       

 

(Ordinance 1220.99 adopted 2/17/15) 

  Residential Uses Nonresidential Uses 

RESIDENTIAL AG SF-1 SF-2 SF-4 SF-5 MF-1 O LR GR CS HO I GUI PR PP 

Accessory Bldg/Structure 

(Nonresidential) 
            P P P P P P       

Accessory Bldg/Structure 

(Residential) 
P P P P P P         P         

172

Item 7.



Accessory Dwelling P C C               P   P     

Caretaker’s/Guard 

Residence 
P P P               P         

Community or Group 

Home 
C C C C C           P         

Duplex/Two-Family       P P P P P P   P         

Garage Residential 

Conversion 
P P C C             P         

Garden Home/Townhome         P P P P P   P         

Home Occupation P P P P P P P P P   P         

HUD-Code Manufactured 

Home 
C     C C C         X         

Living Quarters on Site 

with a Business 
            P P P P P         

Multiple-Family 

Dwelling 
          P P P P   P         

Residential Loft             P P P   P         

Rooming/Boarding House           P   P     P         
 

Single-Family Dwelling, 

Detached 
P P P P P P         P         

Single-Family 

Industrialized Housing 
P P P P P P         P         

Swimming Pool, Private P P P P P P P P P   P         
 

(Ordinance 1220.99 adopted 2/17/15; Ordinance 2019-44 adopted 12/10/19) 

  Residential Uses Nonresidential Uses 

OFFICE AG SF-1 SF-2 SF-4 SF-5 MF-1 O LR GR CS HO I GUI PR PP 

Armed Services 

Recruiting Center 
            P P P P P         

Bank                   C X         

Check Cashing Service               P P P X         

Credit Agency             P P P P X         

Insurance Agency Offices             P P P P P         

Offices, 

General/Professional 
            P P P P P         

Office, Brokerage             P P P P P         173

Item 7.



Services 

Offices, Health Services             P P P P P         

Offices, Legal Services             P P P P P         

Offices, Parole/Probation                     X   P     

Offices, Professional             P P P P P         

Offices, Real Estate 

Office 
            P P P P P         

Saving & Loan                   C X         

Security Monitoring 

Company 
            P P P P X         

Telemarketing Center             P P P P X         
 

(Ordinance 1220.99 adopted 2/17/15) 

  Residential Uses Nonresidential Uses 

PERSONAL & 

BUSINESS SERVICES 
AG SF-1 SF-2 SF-4 SF-5 MF-1 O LR GR CS HO* I GUI PR PP 

All-Terrain Vehicle                 P P X         

Dealer (Sales Only)                     X         

Ambulance Service 

(Private) 
                  P X         

Antique Shop               P P P P         

Appliance Repair               P P P X         

Art Dealer/Gallery               P P P P         

Artisan’s Shop P             P P P P         

Artist Studio P P P P P P P P P P P         

Auto Sales (New & Used)                 C P X         

Auto Supply Store                 P P X         

Bakery or Confectionary 

(Retail) 
              P P P P         

Bar               C C C C         

Barbershop               P P P P         

Beauty Shop               P P P P         

Bed & Breakfast Inn or C C C         P P P P         
174

Item 7.



Facility 

Bicycle Sales and Repair               P P P P         

Book Store               P P P P         

Building Materials Sales                 C P X         
 

Cabinet/Counter/ 

Woodworking Shop 
(Custom) Retail 

                  C X P       

Cabinet/Counter/ 

Woodworking Shop 

(Manufacturing) 

Wholesale 

                    X P       

Cafeteria             C C P P P         

Communication 

Equipment Repair 
                  P X         

Computer Sales               P P P P         

Consignment Shop               P P P P         

Convenience Store (With 

Gas Sales) 
                P P X         

Convenience Store 

(Without Gas Sales) 
              C P P P         

Cooking School               P P P P         

Dance/Drama/Music 

Studio or School 
              P P P P         

Department Store                 P P P         

Drapery, Blind 

Upholstery Store 
              P P P P         

Exterminator Services                   P X         

Financial Services               P P P P         

Florist Shop               P P P P         

Food or Grocery Store 

(General) 
                P P P         

Food or Grocery Store 

(Limited) 
              P P P P         

Funeral Home or 

Mortuary 
                  P X         

Furniture Store (New 

and/or Used) 
              P P P X         

175

Item 7.



Garden Shop (Inside 

Storage) 
              P P P P         

General or Community 

Retail Store 
                P P P         

Gravestone/Tombstone 

Sales 
                  P X         

Hardware Store               P P P P         

Home Improvement 

Center 
                P P X         

Laundry/Dry Cleaning                   P X         

Lawnmower Sales 

&Repair 
                P P X         

Live-in Security Quarters             P P P P P         

Locksmith               P P P X         

Major Appliance Sales                 P P X         

Market (Public)               P P P P         

Mini-Warehouse - Self 

Storage 
                  C X         

 

Mobile food vendor - 10 

days or less 
            P P P P P P P P P 

Mobile food vendor - 

longer than 10 days 
            C C C C C C C     

Mobile food vendor court             C C C C C C C     

Motorcycle Dealer (Sales, 

Repair) 
                P P X         

Motel or Hotel                 P P P         

Needlework Shop               P P P P         

Pet Shop/Supplies               P P P P         

Pharmacy               P P P P         

Photocopying/Duplicating               P P P P         

Photography Studio               P P P P         

Plant Nursery (Retail 

Sales, Outdoors) 
                P P X         

Radio or Television 

Studio 
                P P X         

176

Item 7.



Recycling Center                   C X P       

Restaurant (No Drive-

Through Service) 
              P P P P         

Restaurant (With Drive-

Through) 
                P P X         

Security Systems 

Installation Company 
                C P X         

Sexually Oriented 

Business 
                  C X C       

Shoe Repair               P P P P         

Studio, Tattoo or Body 

Piercing 
              C C C P         

Tailor Shop               P P P P         

Tool & Machinery Rental 

(Indoor Storage) 
              P P P X         

Tool & Machinery Rental 

(Outdoor Storage) 
                  P X         

Travel Agency             P P P P P         

Temporary Outdoor 

Sales/Promotion 
            C P P P P         

Upholstery Shop                 P P P         

Used Merchandise/ 

Furniture 
              P P P P         

Vacuum Cleaner Sales & 

Repair 
              P P P X         

Veterinarian Clinic 

(Indoor Kennels) 
              P P P P         

Woodworking Shop 

(Ornamental, Handmade 
              P P P P         

 

* Permitted in HO District per requirements of Chapter 30, Article 30.05: Mobile Food Vendors. 

(Ordinance 1220.99 adopted 2/17/15; Ordinance 1220.149 adopted 11/14/17; Ordinance 2018-09 adopted 4/10/18) 

  Residential Uses Nonresidential Uses 

TRANSPORTATION & 

AUTO SERVICES 
AG SF-1 SF-2 SF-4 SF-5 MF-1 O LR GR CS HO I GUI PR PP 

Antique Vehicle 

Restoration 
                  P X         

Auto Body Repair                   P X         

Auto Financing &               P P P X         177

Item 7.



Leasing 

Auto Muffler Shop                   P X         

Auto Paint Shop                   P X         
 

Auto Tire Sales & Repair                 P P X         

Auto Upholstery Shop                   P X         

Auto Washing Facility, 

Attended 
                P P X         

Auto Washing Facility, 

Unattended 
                P P X         

Auto Wrecker Service                   P X         

Automobile Repair, 

Major 
                  P X         

Automobile Repair, 

Minor 
              C C P X         

Heliport                       P P     

Helistop                       P P     

Limousine/Taxi Service                   P X         

Oil Change & Inspection                 P P X         

Parking Lot, Commercial                   C           

Parking Structure, 

Commercial 
            C C C P P         

Tire Dealer, Indoor 

Storage 
              P P P X         

 

(Ordinance 1220.99 adopted 2/17/15; Ordinance 1220.140, att. B, adopted 4/11/17; Ordinance 1220.151 adopted 12/12/17) 

  Residential Uses Nonresidential Uses 

AMUSEMENT/ 

RECREATION 
AG SF-1 SF-2 SF-4 SF-5 MF-1 O LR GR CS HO I GUI PR PP 

Amusement Arcade (Four 

or more devices) 
                P P P         

Amusement Services 

(Indoor) 
                P P P         

Amusement Services 

(Outdoor) 
                P P X         

Billiard/Pool Facility                 P P P         

Bingo Hall                 P P P     P   
178

Item 7.



Bowling Center                 P P P     P   

Broadcast Station (With 

Tower) 
                    X P       

Country Club (Private)                 P   X         

Dance Hall                 P P P     P   

Day Camp for Children C C         C   P P           

Civic/Conference Center                     P   P     

Dinner Theater                 P P P         

Driving Range                           P   

Fairgrounds/Exhibition 

Area 
C                         P   

Gaming Club (private)               C C C           

Golf Course (Miniature)                 P P       P   

Golf Course (Public, 

Private) 
C               P P       P   

Health Club             C P P P P     P   

Motion-Picture Studio, 

Commercial 
                  P   P       

Motion-Picture Theater                 P P P         

Museum               P P P P         

Park accessory uses                             P 

Park and/or Playground P P P P P P P P P P P       P 

Psychic Reading Services               P P P P         
 

Rodeo Grounds C                 C   C       

Skating Rink                   P       P   

Tennis Court P P P P P P         P     P   

Theater (Stage)                 P P P     P   

Video Rentals/Sales               P P P P         
 

(Ordinance 1220.99 adopted 2/17/15; Ordinance 2020-01 adopted 1/14/20) 

  Residential Uses Nonresidential Uses 

INSTITUTIONAL/ 

GOVERNMENT 
AG SF-1 SF-2 SF-4 SF-5 MF-1 O LR GR CS HO I GUI PR PP 

179

Item 7.



Assisted Living Facility           C   C C C P         

Broadcast Tower 

(Commercial) 
                      C       

Cemetery or Mausoleum C                       P     

Child Day-Care Facility C C C C C C C P P P P         

Church, Religious 

Assembly 
P P P P P P P P P P P   P     

Civic Club             P P P P P         

Community Center 

(Municipal) 
                    P   P     

Electrical Generating 

Plant 
                      P P     

Electrical Substation                       P P     

Emergency Care Clinic                 P P           

Fire Station P P P P P P P P P P     P     

Fraternal Lodge or Union             P P P P P         

Government Building 

(Mun, St, Fed) 
                  P P   P     

Group Day-Care Home C C C C C C C P P P           

Medical Clinic or Office             P P P P P         

Wireless 

Communications Tower 
C C C     C C C C C   C       

Heliport                       P       

Home for the Aged, 

Residential 
C C C C C C C C P P P         

Hospice               C P P P         

Hospital (Acute Care, 

General) 
            C C P P           

Library             P P P P P   P     

Maternity Home             C C P P P         

Nursing/Convalescent 

Home 
            C C P P           

Orphanage           C C C P P P         

Philanthropic 

Organization 
            P P P P P         

180

Item 7.



Post Office P P P P P P P P P P P   P     

Radio, Television, 

Microwave Tower 
                C C   C       

School, K Through 12 

(public or private) 
P P P P P P P P P P P   P     

Sewage Pumping Station C C C C C C C C C C P P P     

Telephone Switching/ 

Exchange Bldg. 
            C C C P P   P     

 

Wastewater Treatment 

Plant 
C C C C C C C C C C   C P     

Water Supply (Elevated 

Storage Tank) 
C C C C C C C C C C P C P     

Water Supply Facility 

(Private) 
P P P P P P   C C C   C P     

 

  

  Residential Uses Nonresidential Uses 

COMM. & 

WHOLESALE TRADE 
AG SF-1 SF-2 SF-4 SF-5 MF-1 O LR GR CS HO I GUI PR PP 

Book Bindery                   P P         

Feed & Grain Store                 P P           

Furniture Manufacture                       P       

Heating & Air-

Conditioning 
Sales/Service 

                P P           

Pawnshop                 C C           

Propane Sales (Retail)                   P           

Taxidermist                   P           

Transfer Station/Refuse 

Pickup 
                      P       

Veterinarian (Outdoor 

Kennels or Pens) 
C                 P           

Warehouse/Office                   C   P       

Welding Shop                   C   P       
 

  

  Residential Uses Nonresidential Uses 

LIGHT AG SF-1 SF-2 SF-4 SF-5 MF-1 O LR GR CS HO I GUI PR PP 181

Item 7.



INDUSTRIAL/MFG. 

Contractor’s Office (No 

Outside Storage. 
              P P P P P       

Contractor’s Office (with 

Outside Storage) 
                  C   P       

Contractor’s Temporary 

On-site Office 
C C C C C C C C C C P C       

Electronic Assembly                   C   P       

Engine Repair or 

Manufacture 
                      P       

Laboratory Equipment 

Manufacture 
                      P       

Machine Shop                       P       

Maintenance & Repair 

Services for Bldgs. 
                  P           

Open Storage/Outside 

Storage 
C                 C   P       

Plumbing Shop                 P P           

Research Lab 

(Nonhazardous) 
                C C   P       

Sand/Gravel/Stone Sales 

or Storage 
C                 C   P       

 

Sand/Gravel Quarrying                       C       

Sign Manufacturing                   C P P       

Stone/Clay/Glass 

Manufacturing 
                  C   P       

 

(Ordinance 1220.99 adopted 2/17/15) 

182

Item 7.



183

Item 7.



184

Item 7.



185

Item 7.



186

Item 7.



187

Item 7.



188

Item 7.



189

Item 7.



190

Item 7.



191

Item 7.



192

Item 7.



193

Item 7.



194

Item 7.



Subdivision Project Name
City Limits / 

ETJ
Location Description Status

Driftwood Phase 3 ETJ 17901 RM 1826 1 lot subdivision Waiting on the County 
SUB2018-0038_Caliterra Ph 4 Sec 11_FP ETJ RR12 & FM 150 Subdivision of 108 Residential lots Under Review (Added ROW)
SUB2018-0043_Treaty Oak Subdivision MP ETJ 16604 Fitzhugh Rd 1 Lot subdivision Waiting on resubmittal
SUB2018-0061 Headwaters at Barton Creek_AP ETJ 2401 E Hwy 290 Edits to metes and bounds error Waiting on resubmittal
SUB2018-0064 Esperanza Subdivision FP & CP CL 4900 Bell Springs Rd 107 Ac. 104 SF lots and 2 Drainage/park lots Gathering signatures
SUB2019-0012 Headwaters at Barton Creek Ph. 4 Sec. 
2 FP

ETJ
Intersection of Headwaters Blvd 
and Hazy Hills Loop

Residential, Drainage/Water Quality/MUD Utility, 
Future Development 32 lots

Waiting on resubmittal

SUB2019-0013 Headwaters at Barton Creek Ph. 4 Sec. 
3 FP

ETJ
Intersection of Headwaters Blvd 
and Hazy Hills Loop

 Residential, Drainage/Water Quality/MUD Utility, 
Future Development 44 lots

Waiting on resubmittal

SUB2019-0014 Headwaters at Barton Creek Ph. 4 Sec. 
4 FP

ETJ
Intersection of Headwaters Blvd 
and Hazy Hills Loop

Residential, Drainage/Water Quality/MUD Utility, 
Future Development 112 Lots

Waiting on resubmittal

SUB2019-0017 Parten Ranch Amenity Center MP ETJ
NW Corner of Two Creeks Lane 
and Parten Ranch Pkwy

1 Lot for amenity center Waiting on the County

SUB2019-0023 Driftwood Golf & Ranch Club Phase. 1  
CP

ETJ 10450 FM 967 N Side 42 Lot Subdivision on 59.14 acres Waiting on resubmittal

SUB2019-0029 Arrowhead Ranch Ph. 4 FP CL Arrowhead Ranch Blvd 162 Lot Subdivison- 155 SF Lots Under Review

SUB2019-0041 Headwaters Ph. 4 Sec. 6 CP ETJ
Intersection of Headwaters Blvd 
and Hazy Hills Loop

4 Lot subdivision Waiting on the County

SUB2019-0044 Caliterra Ph/2 Sec 7 Block F Lot 9 AP ETJ Peakside Circle amended plat waiting on resubmittal 
SUB2019-0049 Driftwood Club Core Ph. 1 CP ETJ 582 Thurman Roberts Way infrastructure for subdivision Waiting on resubmittal
SUB2019-0050 Driftwood Golf and Ranch Club Ph. 2 
FP

ETJ Thurman Roberts Way
57 SF lots, 3 Open Space, 4 Golf Course Lots, 8 ROW 
lots 

waiting on fiscal or construction 
completion 

SUB2019-0051 Driftwood Club Core Ph. 2 CP ETJ Thurman Roberts Way infrastructure for subdivision Waiting on Resubmittal
SUB2019-0060 Driftwood Phase 1 Section 2 CP ETJ Thurman Roberts Way Update to WW and Rainwater Service details Waiting on Resubmittal
SUB2019-0061 Revision to Driftwood Phase 1 Section 
1 Retrofit

ETJ Thurman Roberts Way Accomadations for additional lot Gathering signatures

SUB2019-0062 Big Sky Ranch Phase 2 CP & FP CL Lone Peak Way 188 Single Family, Drainage, and Open Space lots waiting on resubmittal 
SUB2020-0002 Headwaters at Barton Creek, Phase 5, 
sections 1&2 CP

ETJ
headwaters blvd and sage 
thrasher circle 

188 Residential Lots, Open Space, MUD Utilites with 
WQ and drainage improvements

Gathering signatures

SUB2020-0005 Highpointe phase II 2A-2B, lots 7&8. 
Block C AP

ETJ 118 Red River Cover Austin amended plat Gathering signatures

SUB2020-0012 Parten Ranch Phase 3 CP ETJ
1.5 Miles Southwest of Nutty 
Brown and 1826

Single Family Subdivision Under Review

SUB2018-0055 Quik Trip #4133 Addition Minor Plat CL 16460 Sawyer Ranch Rd
remaining portion of tract A of the Sawyer Springs 
Subdivision P.R. 

waiting on resubmittal 

SUB2019-0001 Murphy Meadows MP ETJ Trautwein RD new subdivision waiting on county
SUB2020-0017 611 Butler Ranch Road ETJ 611 Butler Ranch Road under review (Became a variance)

SUB2020-0019 Polo Club Pond Restoration Etj Polo Club Drive, Austin, TX
Install erosion stabilization measures for outfalls of the 
amenity ponds at the Polo Club at Rooster Springs.

Under Review

195

Item 8.



Site Development Project Name
City Limits / 

ETJ
Location Description Status

SD2019-0005 7-ELEVEN Hwy 290 CL 1711-A Hwy 290
8 fuel pumps, 2 underground storage tanks and the 
required infrastructure, 2.12 acre site.

Under Review

SD2019-0006_Dog N Bone CL 310 Old Fitzhugh Rd Food Trailor and Site improvements Waiting on resubmittal
SD2019-0017 Storserv ETJ E Hwy 290 Self Storage facility approved w conditions
SD2019-0024 Jasons Deli CL 165 Hargraves Dr Restaurant Waiting on resubmittal
SD2019-0025 Merrit Hill Country Amendment CL 28725 RR 12 minor amendment Waiting on resubmittal
SD2019-00026 DSWSC Filling Station CL 198 Creek Rd Gathering Signatures
SD2019-0032 Coffman Real Estate CL 27401 RR 12 Parking lot improvements Waiting on resubmittal
SD2019-0036 Hart Lane Homes ETJ 120 Hart Lane 3 SF homes Waiting on resubmittal

SD2019-0041 Driftwood Creek Temporary Kitchen ETJ 415 Thurman Roberts Way
Temporary kitchen facitilty comprised of 2 shipping 
containers

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2019-0042 Hamburger Hill_Lot 2 CL 616 W HWY 290
Construction of 2 new commercial structures for office 
use

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2020-0006 Ghost Hill Ranch Phase 2 ETJ
31430 Ranch Road 12, Dripping 
Springs, Texas

Two Commercial Buildings Waiting on resubmittal

SD2020-0012 Belterra Building X ETJ
Lot 1B-2, Block A, of the final plat 
of resubdivision No.3 of North 
Belterra Commerical Subdibision

12,600 SF retail building with associated parking and 
utility improvements

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2020-0009 Revision to L&L Automotive ETJ 3987 US HWY 290 E 2 buildings and curshed granite parking area Gathering Signatures
SD2020-0016 100 N Canyonwood Dr etj 100 N Canyonwood Dr 2 office buildings Waiting on resubmittal
SD2020-0017 Home Depot TRC cl 260 E Hwy 290 tool rental center Waiting on resubmittal
SD2020-0018 DSWSC Elevated Storage Tank etj Hart Lane elevated Storage tang Gathering Signatures
SD2020-0019 Headwaters Professional Offices cl Hwy 290 & Kibo Ridge 2 Commercial Buildings under review 

SD2020-0020 Revision to Texas Regional Bank cl
333 E Hwy 290 #305, Dripping 
Springs, TX 78620

The Site Development Plans have been revised for 
connectivity between the current site and future 
development

Approved w/ Conditions

SD2020-0022 Skye Headwaters Revision 2 cl 201 Headwaters Blvd. Reverting back to the originally approved project. Waiting on resubmittal
SD2020-0024 421 Sportsplex Correction cl 421 Sportsplex adding retaining wall Waiting on resubmittal

SD2020-0026 Lavender Springs etj 13701 Trautwein
Construction of an assisted living building, parking 
areas, water service line, on-site sewage facility, and 
storm water detention pond.

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2020-0027 Velocity Credit Union
limited 

purpose 
district

Lot 1 Block E of Bush Ranch 
Phase 1 Revised Subdivision

Construction of an assisted living building, parking 
areas, water service line, on-site sewage facility, and 
storm water detention pond. 

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2020-0023 Dripping Springs Elementary #5 Aka 
2020-1412

etj 11091 Darden Hill Road
Educational institute comprised of 5.0 acres of Lot 74 
of the Onion Creek Ranch Subdivision

under review

SD2020-0028 DSMS Remodel AKA 2020-1495 CL 111 & 113 Tiger Lane

This project includes a new building for the relocation of 
Walnut Springs Elementary School, designed to serve 850 
students to be built south of the existing Dripping Springs 
Middle School. Additional site and interior improvements 
proposed at DSMS and are included in this scope. Sanitary 
sewer and demolition have been submitted for approval 
separately.

Under review

SD2020-0014 603 W Hwy 290 CL 603 W Hwy 290 
convert existing house to commerical use, add limited 
amounts of base materials and z storage containers in 
back of house, and dedicate drainage easement 

approved with conditions 

SD2020-0029 Headwaters Phase II CL Kibo Ridge and Hwy 290 
this project includes the construction of four 3-story 
apartment buildings, associated parking and drives, 
and utilities 

under review 

SD2020-0030 Howard Ranch Commercial Cl FM 150 and RR12 

one 5. 110-sf general store/fueling station, two 
10,400-sf retail stores, two 6.800-sf retail stores. One 
17.600-sf retail store, and a 10,350-sf live/work 
building to be located on 7.391 acres 

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2020-0031 ATX Drainage and Landscaping ETJ 13400 Nutty Brown Road 
construction of a landscape yard, associated 6.055 
sqft office/warehouse and parking 

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2020-0032 Big Sky Ranch Amenity Center CL Lone Peak Way amenity center for Big Sky Ranch within Phase 2 Waiting on resubmittal
SD2020-0033 Hill Country Senior Citizen Activity 
Center

CL
1310 US-290, DRIPPING 
SPRINGS, TX 78620

 A 3,150 sq ft building is proposed. Under Review

SD2020-0034 27950 RR 12 CL 27950 RR 12
To place (temporarily - as limited by the CUP) a tent 
and 3 shipping containers on the property for the 
purposes of storage only. 

Under Review

SD2020-0035 Harrison Hills Business Park CL
North of Whisenant, across from 
Founders Ridge (No address 
given)

Infrastructure including construction of Driveway to 12, 
water quality and detention ponds, utilites, offsite 
improvements for wastewater tie in

Under Review

SD2020-0036 Arrowhead Ranch Amenity Center 
Revision

Cl Arrowhead Ranch Blvd
Proposed Site Development for future arrowhead ranch 
amenity Center

Under Review

SD2020-0037 Sawyer Ranch Phase 2 Lot 2A Revision CL 13441 W US Hwy 290
Site Development Improvements for Lot 2A, 5.5982 
acres of the Sawywer Ranch Subdivision. Commercial 
buildings, associated parking, utilites and sidewalks

Under Review

ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL PROJECTS

2
196

Item 8.


	Top
	1.	MIN: July PZC Minutes
	07.28.20 PZC Minutes_draft

	2.	SUB2020-0018: Indian Point Plat Vacation
	SUB2020-0018 P&Z Staff Report
	Exhibit 1: Plat Vacation Application
	Exhibit 2 - Indian Point Estates Plat, 1999
	Exhibit 3 - Indian Point Estates Plat, 2000
	Exhibit 4 - Esperanza Phase 1 Final Plat Recorded
	Exhibit 5 - Indian Point Plat Vacation

	3.	VAR2020-0016: 611 Butler Ranch_ Flag Lot
	VAR2020-0016- Rill Subdivision Variance - AP
	Exhibit 1 - Image of Lots

	4.	VAR2020-0013: Big Sky Ranch Phase 1 Setback Special Exception
	VAR2020-0013 P&Z Staff Report
	Exhibit 1 - Variance Application
	Exhibit 2 - Lots subject to variance
	Exhibit 3 – Example Plot Plan
	Exhibit 4 – Utilities distribution
	Exhibit 5 – Big Sky Ranch Phase 1 recorded Final Plat
	Exhibit 6 – Photos taken by staff

	5.	CUP2020-0008: Mobile Food Trailer
	CUP2020-0008 P&Z Staff report
	Exhibit 1 - Conditional Use Permit application
	Exhibit 2 - Concept Plan
	Exhibit 3 - Project Summary (Submitted by Applicant)
	Exhibit 4 - Floor Plan
	Exhibit 5 - Letter from Railroad BBQ
	Exhibit 6 - Suite to be occupied by business

	6.	ZA2020-0005 Sawyer Ranch 33, Lot 3
	ZA2020-0005 P&Z Staff Report
	Exhibit 1 – Zoning Map Amendment Application
	Exhibit 2 - Draft Ordinance for Sawyer Ranch
	Exhibit 2 - Survey
	Exhibit 3 - Zoning Use Chart_GR

	7.	ZA2020-0006: Haydon Tract
	ZA2020-0006 P&Z Staff Report
	Exhibit 2 - Draft Ordinance
	Attachments_A_B_ for Exhibit 2
	Exhibit 3 - General Retail Use  Historic Overlay Chart
	Exhibit 4 - Implementation Standards Historic Districts

	8.	August Planning Report
	Planning Dept Report 8.19.2020

	Bottom

